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Financial Results

| am pleased to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2012. During the year, the Group achieved a profit from operations
before valuation changes in investment properties (under Continuing
operation) of HK$360.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
30.1% compared with the previous financial year. The increase was mainly
due to increase of rental income from ISQUARE compared to the previous

financial year.

Valuation gains on investment properties for the financial year ended
31 March 2012 amounted to HK$173.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$586.4 million compared with the previous financial year.
The valuation gains will only affect the accounting profit or loss but not the

cash flow of the Group.

With the inclusion of the discontinued operation (see note 5 to the financial
statements), the Group recorded a profit attributable to equity shareholders
of HK$429.7 million, compared with a profit attributable to equity

shareholders of HK$1,222.4 million for the previous financial year.

Business Review and Commentary on
Financial Results

iISQUARE is a commercial complex housing a number of retail,
entertainment, food and beverage establishments. Rental income from
iISQUARE amounted to approximately HK$452.7 million for the financial year
ended 31 March 2012, representing an increase of approximately 20.4%
compared with the previous financial year. The occupancy rate at 31 March
2012 was approximately 98.5% compared with approximately 92.3% at
31 March 2011.
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Capital Structure and Liquidity
The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2012 was HK$10,099.8 million,
compared with HK$9,932.9 million at 31 March 2011.

During the year under review, the Company repaid HK$1,000 million being
substantial part repayment of the bank loan granted by the facility agreement
entered on 20 October 2006. The facilities have, subject to certain
conditions, been extended for two additional years. At 31 March 2012, the
outstanding bank loan was HK$200 million and the Group’s gearing ratio

was 2.0% (calculated as total bank loan over total equity).

Outlook

The external economic environment remains uncertain and the management
continues to evaluate its impact on the leasing market. The Group will
adopt appropriate leasing strategies to enhance the leasing performance of
iISQUARE. Barring unforeseen circumstances, it is expected rental income
from iISQUARE would generally benefit from increased rental arising from the

renewal of certain existing tenancies.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of shareholders of the Company will be held
on Wednesday, 5 September 2012. For the purpose of determining the
identity of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 3 September 2012 to Wednesday, 5 September
2012, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on
Friday, 31 August 2012.
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Dividend

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.55 per
share for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$0.45 per share). As
the Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.28 per share during the
year (2011: Nil), the total distribution will be HK$0.83 per share for the
year (2011: HK$0.45 per share). Subject to the shareholders’ approval on
the proposed final dividend at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”), the register of members of the Company will be closed for the
purpose of determining entitlement to the said final dividend from Tuesday,
11 September 2012 to Thursday, 13 September 2012, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on Monday,
10 September 2012. The proposed final dividend will be paid on Friday,
21 September 2012 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of

members on Thursday, 13 September 2012 following approval at the AGM.

Staff

At 31 March 2012, the total number of employees of the Group, excluding
the staff employed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Property Management
Limited for general building and property management of iSQUARE, was 37
(81 March 2011: 127) and the related costs incurred during the year were
approximately HK$22.0 million (31 March 2011: HK$28.2 million).

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside

training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion

and dedication in the past year.

Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2012
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iISQUARE

iISQUARE is located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui at the intersection of
Nathan Road and Peking Road. It is the first one-stop shopping and
entertainment complex linked to Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station. This 31-storey
complex provides 56,000 square metres of space comprising a shopping

podium, cinema box and tower.

The podium is a vibrant new hub for world-class fashion and lifestyle brands,
complemented by five grand cineplexes, including a 448-seat digital IMAX
Theatre. iISQUARE also features fine-dining restaurants and lifestyle services

in its iconic tower.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholders and is therefore
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. To
accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices and procedure,

and identified and formalised appropriate measures and policies.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company complied with all
the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) which
were then in force except that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer were not separated and performed by two individuals, which was

inconsistent with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

In respect of the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company. The Board of Directors considers that the current structure
does not have any adverse effect on the Company and believes that this
structure enables the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and

efficiently.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its code for dealing in securities in the Company by its Directors (“Model
Code”). Specific enquiry has been made with all Directors of the Company of
any non-compliance with the Model Code, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

year ended 31 March 2012.
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors during the year ended 31 March 2012 comprised the

following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Directors
Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Mr Lau Wah Sum (resigned with effect from 1 January 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

Mr Lee Chung

Subsequent to the resignation of Mr Lau Wah Sum, one-third of the Board

members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter
of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the Directors who are

members of the Cheong family own business outside the Group together.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group.
It formulates objectives, overall strategies and business plans, and
oversees the financial and management performance of the Group. For
efficient operation, certain functions and authorities are delegated to the
management, which include implementation of objectives, strategies and
plans adopted by the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business. The respective functions of the Board and the management have
been laid down and set out in writing. In spite of it, the Board takes the

ultimate responsibility for the Group’s management and operation.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2012 on a going concern basis, the Directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies and, other than the new and revised accounting
policies which are either effective for the year under review or early adopted
by the Group as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, applied
them consistently with those applied to the financial statements of the
previous financial year. The Directors have also made judgements and
estimates which are reasonable.

The Directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Group. The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 44 to 45.

Seven board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, and one
general meeting were held during the year ended 31 March 2012. Individual
attendance of the Directors is set out below:

HEEBAE FERHESRRY
Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

EEggE BRAE

Directors Board Meetings General Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
EEEEA(FE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 6/7 1/1
FEBMEE(BIEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 7/7 1/1
B Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 5/7 1/1
fepoyealinley Mr Cheong Sim Lam 7/7 1/1
fEIRIe/MA Miss Cheong Chong Ling 7/7 1/1
FEHTITEE Non-executive Directors
il Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 777 11
RS & Mr Lau Wah Sum Nete 5/5 11
BUHPTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
AEBRE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 77 1/1
hEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 7/7 1/1
E/ S Mr Lee Chung 7/7 0/1

it AERELACHREARREATESE B TN =T
—CHE-A-HBRER - EEER ARFTHREH
RREFRREL—RBRAE -

Note: Mr Lau Wah Sum resigned from his position as a Non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from 1 January 2012. During his tenure, five board

meetings and one general meeting were held.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continued)

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year under review,
all Directors were furnished with quarterly memorandum/circular so as
to regularly refresh their knowledge in relation to legal and regulatory
obligations. To keep the Directors abreast of the latest development on
the regulatory and legal requirements, the company secretary provided
updates to the Board as and when necessary. In addition, the Company
had also formalised the policy on arranging and funding Directors’ training.
The Directors are encouraged to attend relevant external training sessions,
seminars, forums and conferences with all related expenses reimbursable by

the Company, subject to the Company’s policy.

Non-executive Directors and

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of one year whilst
Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for the period
commencing from the conclusion of one annual general meeting to the
conclusion of the following annual general meeting. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, they are required to retire by rotation, but

eligible for re-election, at least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each Independent Non-
executive Director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. One of the
Independent Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as

required under the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the remuneration
committee, nomination committee and audit committee, each with its written
terms of reference. Each committee is required to report back to the Board
and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and recommendations

unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on its ability to do so.

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &



TEERHE Corporate Governance Report

EEEBETNZERS @)
FEEE

AEEFMEENHSLE ORLABE N
SEABAREMEENE TR - Alk - BFE
BRUHMES S - RAEEFMEENRT -

RTE °

FNEZE SRR =R BUIFRTEEN—F
FRITEEER PSR ARATERE(ZE
BIF)  EEMEL  FMELENMKFBEL
(BIEREEB T —F—A - RRTHEEEH
MEBEKE)  HFNZBEENETEZRAER T
ARBFFTEERGEEREASNFHMBERLR
B e RAEEE B HBEZ  REMEBI
TEENSEERABNEH  MEESEHF
WITESMEFATESTNHM - ZEFREA
A NEEFE - BN EOEREETMAEEE
R H B BRI - et RALERRITEEME
BEEAS M EEMRAFL L EBEHEE
MERTE - Migst R ERERITRAKE MERESN
RRBHEZEEMIRNBELZSE - FHEEeN
BRESECHAOMAELENNEE  YEBHR
ARBNBEER G RAEERERAB([RFBH])
Mk - RIS TRAAEE D AR RMERR ©

WTEENSEERABNGFMSFhHFMNESR
SHEZEBITHAHNERRET (EEBREEN
M mFMEZEE2RRE) - FHEZBEEFT
SR FMITESME L IFNITESOFM - X
WZEFFENEFTSFLER - HtB T
AEFhRTEFEEESAHAIFIEENES
RETE °

Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain Directors
and staff of suitable calibre by remunerating them at competitive level. In
order to achieve this, the Board has established a remuneration committee.
Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no Director or his associates is

allowed to be involved in decisions relating to his own remuneration.

The remuneration committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and one Non-executive Director. They are Mr Chow
Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, Mr Lee
Chung and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam (Mr Lau Wah Sum ceased as a member
of the committee with effect from 1 January 2012). The main duties of
the remuneration committee are to assist the Company in formulating
remuneration policy and structure for Directors and senior management;
to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals; to
determine the remuneration packages of individual Executive Director
and senior management; to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors; to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group; to review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment; and to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct. Details of the
remuneration committee’s authority and duties are set out in the terms of
reference. The said terms of reference are published on the websites of the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the “HKEx”) and

are also available upon written request to the company secretary.

Remuneration for Executive Directors and senior management is determined
by the remuneration committee on the recommendations of the chief
executive officer (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong whose remuneration
package is determined by the remuneration committee alone) on an
annual basis. The remuneration committee also makes recommendations
to the Board on the review of remuneration for Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors annually. For all other staff,
it is the Executive Directors who fix their remuneration packages on the

recommendations of their respective department heads on an annual basis.
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Members

Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The amount of remuneration payable to the Directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the Directors. When determining the remuneration
packages for senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and Executive Directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market condition, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 28 to the financial
statements on page 116, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the remuneration committee held two
meetings, at which, the committee reviewed and made recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s remuneration structure; considered and fixed
the remuneration packages of Executive Directors and senior management
and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of both the

Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors.

The attendance record of each remuneration committee member is set out

below:

HEEBRE FERHEERILRE

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

AEGEE(EEESLE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 2/2
BEERR S A Mr Lau Wah Sum et 2/2
FEARRR A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
B EE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
EX/N Mr Lee Chung 2/2
i BEREEE T —_F-A-HETHELFME Note: Mr Lau Wah Sum ceased as a member of the remuneration committee with
BEeKE - £HEER  AATHRBHAMAFHNEE S effect from 1 January 2012. During his tenure, two remuneration committee
@ o meetings were held.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee was established on 15 March 2012 comprising
two Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
The members are Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee chairman), Mr Cheong
Kheng Lim, Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam and Mr Lee
Chung.

The main duties of the nomination committee are to review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to assess
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors; to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive officer. Details of
the nomination committee’s authority and duties are set out in the terms of
reference. The said terms of reference are published on the websites of the
Company and the HKEx and are also available upon written request to the
company secretary. During the year, the nomination committee did not hold

any meeting.

Before formation of the nomination committee, its role and functions were
performed by the Board. During the financial year ended 31 March 2012,
the Board made recommendations and provided biographical details to
shareholders of the Company on Directors standing for re-election. The
Chairman from time to time reviewed the composition of the Board with
particular regard to the number and the independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Board also reviewed and determined the

suitability and terms for re-appointment of Directors.
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Directors

Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

For re-appointment of a Director, the Board considers not only the skills and
experience of the Director concerned, but also his/her value to the Company,
SO as to ensure that there is a balanced composition of the Board. The
process for re-election of a Director is pursuant to the Company’s Articles
of Association, which requires that (i) every Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and a retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election; and (i) Directors who are appointed by the
Board as an addition to the Board shall retire at the next annual general
meeting whilst those appointed to fill casual vacancies shall retire at the next
general meeting (instead of the next annual general meeting) and Directors

S0 appointed are eligible for re-election.

Among the seven board meetings held during the year ended 31 March
2012, two of the meetings covered issues in relation to re-appointment
of Directors. Individual attendance of the Directors at the said two board

meetings is set out below:

HEEBRE FERHEERILRE

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HITEE Executive Directors

EERLE(EE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2
BIEMEE(FEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
ERERL Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 1/2
epuyealinley Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
SEIRIS/MA Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2
FITEE Non-executive Directors

FEARRR A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
BIFER G = Mr Lau Wah Sum Nete 2/2
BUHRITEE Independent Non-executive Directors

IEEES s Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
hEFEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
Ve Mr Lee Chung 2/2

i BIEREEMHERDREEERRETNERES
ERUEAAE -

&
=

Note: The attendance of Mr Lau Wah Sum is made by reference to the number of
relevant board meetings held during his tenure.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee

The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are
to make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor; to approve remuneration and terms of
engagement, and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal
in respect of external auditor; to review and monitor external auditor’'s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of their audit process;
to discuss with external auditor the nature and scope of audit and reporting
obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and implement policy
on engagement of external auditor to supply non-audit services; to oversee
financial reporting system and internal control procedure; to review financial
information of the Group; to review arrangements employees can use in
confidence to raise concerns about possible improprieties and ensure proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation and follow-
up action; and to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with external auditor. Details of the audit committee’s
authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of
reference are published on the websites of the Company and the HKEx and

are also available upon written request to the company secretary.

The audit committee currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Non-executive Director. The members are Mr Chow Wan
Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, Mr Lee Chung
and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam (Mr Lau Wah Sum ceased as a member of the

committee with effect from 1 January 2012).
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the audit committee met three times,
at which the audit committee made recommendations to the Board on
the re-appointment of the external auditor, considered and approved the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor; reviewed the
half-year and annual financial statements of the Group, including integrity
and significant financial reporting judgements contained therein, before
submission to the Board for approval; discussed with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit before commencement; reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and met the external

auditor without the presence of executive board members of the Company.

The audit committee also took initiative in agreeing with the external auditor
on the scope and extent of interim review before commencement and
ensuring the Company’s compliance with its policy on engagement of

external auditor to supply non-audit services to the Group.

The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out below:

HESHEAE FEREEERRE

Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

EFEE(ZEESTE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 3/3

%\J%ﬁf‘ﬁiﬂ Mr Lau Wah Sum et 2/2

SRR Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 3/3

PhEFB S Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3

=N Mr Lee Chung 3/3
i BAEREEA-ZE——F—A—BETBEIEERZE Note: Mr Lau Wah Sum ceased as a member of the audit committee with effect from

HEBHMABEZZES

o

v

ERH
SERE - EEER  ARE
E

mE}

1 January 2012. During his tenure, two audit committee meetings were held.
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Directors

Board Committees (continued)

Corporate governance functions

Given the importance of good corporate governance to the success of
the Company, the Board is directly responsible for performing corporate
governance functions. The duties set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the

CG Code are included in its terms of reference.

Among the seven board meetings held during the financial year ended
31 March 2012, two of the meetings covered issues relating to corporate
governance. At the meetings, the Board formulated corporate governance
policies and practices with particular regard to the compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; reviewed the policy on training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; developed
a general code of conduct for employees and Directors; and reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in corporate

governance report.

Individual attendance of the Directors at the said two board meetings is set

out below:

HESHEAE  FERHEERRE

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HITEFE Executive Directors

EERLEE(EE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2

BEMEE(FEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2

EMESE Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 1/2

SBAARSLAE Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
§EHRIe/MA Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2

FHITEE Non-executive Directors

HeABRE ST Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2

BIFEIRSE = Mr Lau Wah Sum Nete 1/1

B ITEE Independent Non-executive Directors

EESi=btas Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2

PESEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2

TS E Mr Lee Chung 2/2

o BERAENEERDNREATHRERTNRBES Note: The attendance of Mr Lau Wah Sum is made by reference to the number of
SeBHATY . relevant board meetings held during his tenure.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Auditor of the Company, KPMG,
provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$645,000 to the
Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of approximately
HK$348,000 to the Group, which included HK$182,000 and HK$157,000

being charges for tax services and interim review respectively.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system
and reviewing its effectiveness. Procedure and systems are in place to
safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition; to maintain proper
accounting records and to ensure accuracy of financial information and
compliance with applicable statutes, rules and regulations. Defined roles,
responsibilities and reporting lines have been established. However, these
procedure and systems are designed to minimise and mitigate the risk of
failure in operation and achievement of the Company’s objectives and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against errors, losses or

fraud.

The Board has, with the assistance of the audit committee of the Company,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2012. The review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and risk management functions. The Board considers that the resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget are
adequate. The Board is not aware of any significant areas of concern which

has to be brought to the attention of the shareholders.
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Shareholders’ Relations

To enhance its accountability and transparency, the Company is committed

to maintaining channels for communication with its shareholders.

Providing information

Corporate communication are prepared in both English and Chinese versions
and in plain language so as to make the documents understandable. Such
documents are despatched to shareholders and released to the public

domain in a timely manner.

Information released by the Company to the HKEx is posted on the

Company’s website (http://aihl.etnet.com.hk/ca-calendar-e.html) thereafter.

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company which spell
out shareholders’ rights can be found on the websites of the Company and
the HKEXx.

Shareholders may at any time make a written request for the Company’s

information to the extent that such information is publicly available.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction

Annual general meeting provides a forum for face-to-face communication
between shareholders and the Board. Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote
at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to attend. Board
members, in particular, Chairman of the Board and chairmen of the Board
Committees, or their delegates, appropriate management staff and external
auditor normally attend annual general meetings to answer shareholders’

questions.

Shareholders are also provided with means by which their inquiries can
be put forward to the Board. Such channels, including designated email

address (aihlcosec@tianteckgroup.com), correspondence address, fax

number and telephone number, are made available on the Company’s
website. For queries relating to shareholders’ own shareholdings, they

should be directed to the Company’s share registrars.

Subject to applicable legislation and regulations, in particular the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules, and the Articles of
Association of the Company as amended from time to time, shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”, and each a “Shareholder”) may convene
general meetings and put forward proposals at general meetings. Relevant

procedure is set out below:

Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
° To convene an AGM
The Company holds a general meeting as its AGM every year. This is

usually held in September.

If the Company fails to hold an AGM after 15 months have elapsed
since the date of the previous AGM (which is unlikely to occur), any
Shareholder may apply to the court in Hong Kong which, on such

application, may call or direct the calling of an AGM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) (Continued)

To move a resolution at an AGM
The number of Shareholders necessary for moving a resolution at an
AGM shall be:

0] Shareholders holding not less than 1/40 of the total voting
rights of Shareholders having at the date of the requisition the
right to vote at the AGM; or

(ii) not less than 50 Shareholders holding shares in the Company
on which there has been paid up an average sum, per
Shareholder, of not less than HK$2,000.

The requisition must be in writing and state the resolution,
accompanied by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution. The
written requisition shall be signed by all the Shareholders concerned
and may consist of several documents in like form containing the

signatures of all the Shareholders concerned.

The written requisition must be deposited at 9/F, iSQUARE,
63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered
office of the Company, for the attention of the Board not less than
6 weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution and not less than 1 week before the AGM in the case

of any other requisition.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s share registrars
and upon their confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order,
the company secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in
the agenda for the AGM provided that the Shareholders concerned
have deposited a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and
circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholders concerned
in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is verified as not
in order or the Shareholders concerned have failed to deposit
reasonably sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for the
said purposes, the Shareholders concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included
in the agenda for the AGM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) (Continued)

To propose a person other than a Director of the Company

as a Director

The Company at the meeting at which a Director retires may fill the
vacated office by electing a person thereto. If a Shareholder (other
than the person to be nominated as mentioned hereinafter), who
is duly qualified to attend and vote at the AGM, wishes to propose
a person other than a retiring Director of the Company for election
as a Director of the Company at the AGM, he/she should sign and
deposit a notice of intention to that effect at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of the Board together with a notice signed
by the nominated person of his/her willingness to be elected. The
minimum length of period during which such notices are given shall
be at least 7 days and the period for lodgement shall commence no
earlier than the day after despatch of the notice of the AGM (inclusive
of such day) and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of the AGM
(the “Lodgement Period”).

To enable the Company to inform Shareholders of the foregoing
proposal, the written notices as mentioned above shall be
accompanied by (i) the information of the nominated person as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and
(i) the written consent of the nominated person to the publication of

his/her personal data.

Relevant procedure and the Lodgement Period for the AGM will be

set out in the circular to be despatched to the Shareholders.

If the notice is received less than 15 clear days prior to the AGM,
the Company will consider adjourning the AGM in order to allow
Shareholders at least 14 clear days or 10 business days’ notice of the

proposal, whichever is the longer.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”)

To convene an EGM

Shareholders holding not less than 1/20 of the paid-up capital of the
Company at the date of the deposit of the requisition can deposit a
written requisition to convene an EGM at 9/F, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of

the Company, for the attention of the Board.

The written requisition must state the objects of the meeting and
signed by the Shareholders concerned. It may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the

Shareholders concerned.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s share registrars
and upon their confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order,
the company secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM by
serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements
to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is
verified as not in order, the Shareholders concerned will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as

requested.

Where, within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition,
the Directors of the Company do not proceed duly to convene an
EGM for a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the
notice convening the EGM is given, the Shareholders concerned,
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, provided that
any EGM so convened is held within 3 months from the date of the

requisition.
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IR R EAR ) Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

ERIRE RS (&) Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) (Continued)

o  ARFRIREARE(E) e To convene an EGM (Continued)
5 R % B K 2 3 AN HR Notice periods for EGM
TEEAERENERIREASIRE ES The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders for
MR T ASLIREABANERAEE SR consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned
ME MR - fFulan T at an EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal. A brief

description of which is set out as follows:

ERHME BT HEAH

Nature of the proposal Notice period required

e
If the proposal:

o B IREBRER > TORTEBRMEEBRM

constitutes an ordinary resolution

o R —IRRFRIRFE SR

constitutes a special resolution

o RIRE B R RUEHI)FTE 2 R 518 A
requires a special notice under the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance

not less than 14 clear days’ notice in writing

— TR -BRNEmBEAN

not less than 21 clear days’ notice in writing

> BIRRAERTAAOR T NAROEEBEM

not less than 28 days’ notice in writing before the EGM
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) have pleasure in
submitting their annual report together with the audited financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Principal Place of Business

Associated International Hotels Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9th Floor, ISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim

Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the five largest suppliers and five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases

and sales respectively.

Annual Report 2011-2012 fﬁﬁb




BEEEH|EE Report of the Directors

B iRk

REBEHE T —F=A=1+—BI-EEMH
B R AN A R RIS B A 5% B 89 B BUA 0 1) 8k B
EMEANEI6EEFE118H -

PN
WMAMBRRKRENREEMWG G M /B K
429,740,0007T( =F——4 : H#1,222,443,0007T)
ERARE - REOEMES BN GEEE
mPEE o

ARBERZZ—=—F— ANBRERHREET
RAM028T(ZT——F  \) - EREFHEZ
EBEHEE T —F=-A=+—HLEFEHKRE
M e ERBEEOET (T ——F : GRBEK
0.457T) °

BEB
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Financial Statements
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 46 to 118.

Transfer to Reserves

Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$429,740,000
(2011: HK$1,222,443,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity.

An interim dividend of HK$0.28 per share (2011: Nil) was paid on 9 January
2012. The Board now recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HKS$0.55 per share (2011: HK$0.45 per share) in respect of the year ended
31 March 2012.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$105,000 (2011: HK$115,000).
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EEE Fixed Assets

EE B ERNE B ST EAN I B REMFE14 o Movements in fixed assets are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
REEBRREWENT : Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set out as follows:
HERSEREEYE Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation

BRERR HEFH

Location Existing use Term of lease

Bl &5 B A
BRI IR BB ST =57
(NLBERHLER 742555)
iISQUARE Shopping centre Medium
63 Nathan Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)

HETERNE Ti5 RSB HRHY
HRABRL « —HEABN K

LT~ L2~ L3RLARENL

NEBBETRE-—AZAER

(BB B 22%R)
Good Luck Industrial Building Workshops and Medium
Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor, car parking spaces

and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,

105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

BRp=E 50 E/NE KH
FiE

EETHmBRT=2+M% &

BHEP_T—E_T=5%

(/8551 B2 3665%)

Euro Trade Centre Offices Long
5th Floor,

Nos. 13-14 Connaught Road Central and

Nos. 21-23 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

(Marine Lot No. 366)
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors
Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam

Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Directors
Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Lau Wah Sum (resigned with effect from 1 January 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Yau Allen Lee-nam

Lee Chung

In accordance with articles 103 and 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Sim Lam and Mr Chow
Wan Hoi, Paul shall retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming

annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed
to their respective executive offices in the Company for an initial period of
two years effective on 1 January 1986 and their appointments continue after
the said period unless and until either party gives to the other three months’

notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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EENBESTHAEEEBMNMR Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
B BERDFMERESNEZ  Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
5874 and Debentures

BARNGIZRBCE S REEEGY([HEHED ) As at 31 March 2012, the directors and chief executives of the Company and
EIMEREHEFNELRMEAT SRR LETE their associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
TABBETESZ SMEEST R[22 ]) on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) had the following interests in the
NEMFRMARG REBHERFMERAR shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
(TEtZFr DVEHRBIERTR - KRARINESE « &7 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in
BAB REBE AR ZFrES MR EH the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
BN ZEE )R _E——F=A=+—HEEXK SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
NE R HAEAE (AL B A IEM EXVIRFTEH Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for

EE)ZBMDEERIT Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”):
(@ AT (@) The Company
BEREEBK I T2EBREE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
IHE BT
BnfEs IR 4E 8
AR REREs AT R wme HEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
fEEIE Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 — — 2,073,992 0.58%
$EIEHR Cheong Kheng Lim 24,555,715 1,034,000 — 25,589,715 711%
e e Cheong Keng Hooi 11,759,839 275,280 — 12,085,119 3.34%
fipode) Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 — 1,831,155 0.51%
)il Cheong Chong Ling 1,588,000 — — 1,588,000 0.44%
JErERE Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 242,000 — 120,000 362,000 0.10%
(75)(Note)
o AREZE TH120,0000% BB EA R AR ATEF Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary
B #9120,0000% & 38 A% © RIRESFEH] - AE1EE shares held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken
FEWRARE LSRN AER o to be interested in such shares under the SFO.
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EERBERESTHAEEENE Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
? - EEROMERESWRELZ  Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
NRE and Debentures (continued)

(b) Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd. (b) Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.

EREESRAZTITZ2EBREE
Number of ordinary shares of MYR1 each
HE R8T
Baks RGBH
(EPN 5 RERER AR B WEZ L
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
fEpEye Cheong Hooi Hong 1 - - 1 0.00001%
frodea] Cheong Sim Lam — 3 — 3 0.00003%
() REHEARRDT (c) Tian Teck Land Limited
BREEB%0.255 T ZRAHAE
Number of shares of HK$0.25 each
HE 8T
EnfEn RGP HBE
PN RERER AR mE WEZL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
fEEE Cheong Hooi Hong 4,625,792 — - 4,625,792 0.97%
$BIBHR Cheong Kheng Lim 46,023,872 115,292 — 46,139,164 9.72%
SEME Cheong Keng Hooi 26,862,036 1,002,384 — 27,864,420 5.87%
frpodea) Cheong Sim Lam 1,099,504 — — 1,099,504 0.23%
i Cheong Chong Ling 412,000 - - 412,000 0.09%
Yzt Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2,000 — 115,200 117,200 0.02%

(F)(Note)

£ QAEEZm NAI115,20008 AR EA R AR Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares
A HI115,20008 A 17 o BIRFEFH A - EAER held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken to be
FEWRARE LSRN interested in such shares under the SFO.
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EENEETHRAEEENI Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
B BERDFMERESNEZ  Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares

KRE @) and Debentures (continued)
(d XREBRAF (d) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited
BREESBEI T2EERYE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
HERT
BxnEx R 4EE
EAER RERER DR S By WEZL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
fEEIE Cheong Hooi Hong 25 - - 25 25%
SEIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 25 — — 25 25%
e b Cheong Keng Hooi 25 — — 25 25%
fzodea] Cheong Sim Lam 25 — — 25 25%
(e) mBEBIRAF (e) Yik Fok Investment Holding Company, Limited
BREESBEI T2EERYE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
HERT
BanEx R 4EE
BAER KEER DR By WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
EEIE Cheong Hooi Hong 10 — - 10 0.00005%
FEBRIN Cheong Kheng Lim 10 — — 10 0.00005%
sEmE Cheong Keng Hooi 10 — — 10 0.00005%
faede] Cheong Sim Lam 10 — — 10 0.00005%

aik|

BREMAIEEBEEIN  BAQAIKERBRELFKD

FIRIEHEHTHERMET - JIRRIZTLEST chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
BIAE AL 5 AR R B KRB R FTEH BB R - R Rules) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
—ZE——FZA=1+—H ' ARBESE - BTHK or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
ANBNMHBE AR EMRAZEE)IDEFHREAR meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
NEISRE AR A (BT A B IEHIEXVEFTER kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
EE )Y - ARG K EREZEESAR © to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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FTERRREMALTEENIRD  Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
MEERONERRAR Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

T BEZ AR EENESTHRAERN As at 31 March 2012, other than the interests of the directors and chief
@ ARFREBMN  UWREDIZRBRES executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been
EHIE336 KB ELERELRMERZETR - R notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded
TE-CFE=A=1t—HEEARARMHAEZ in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
BT SFO:

BREEEE1T HEBRTRED
ZEBRHE HEWEDL

Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares total issued
of HK$1 each shares

REARAT Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(351)(Note 1)

KiEMEFR AR Tian Teck Land Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(5%1)(Note 1)

$BIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 25,589,715 711%
(3¥2)(Note 2)
WE B Lim Yoke Soon 25,589,715 7.11%
(5¥2)(Note 2)
i Notes:
(1) B R F KD F 336K M BT RGN s AR EH (1) The register of interests and short positions in shares kept under section 336 of
MER - REGRARMFEENESEREMESR the SFO indicates that the interest disclosed by Tian Teck Investment Holding
A EEH9180,030,681 B A (AR © Co., Limited is the same as the 180,030,681 shares disclosed by Tian Teck
Land Limited.

©) EENEEMBEBENREANEBEZ T HEDN © The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is the same as the

25,589,715 f& 10 4 [R] © 7£25,589,715/% A& {5 1+ 25,589,715 shares disclosed by Ms Lim Yoke Soon. Out of the
24,555,7150% BB EES - 1,084,0000% 8] & 25,589,715 shares, 24,555,715 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim,
HEBMREBZLTHA - and 1,034,000 shares were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

M FFTiEEEN  RZE——F=ZA=+— Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, no other interests or short

B ARAENEEEANE BT EAiEERES positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
&5 533615 M B EB TR B ey A2 R D A recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO
AR MDEERIORE ° have been notified to the Company.
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AEER - ARFRIEFHEA T HBE -
S B AR EEH o

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its controlling
shareholders or any of their subsidiaries was a party, or in which a director of
the Company had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly), subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

(@) The Company has an administrative services agreement and also
a non-administrative services agreement, each for an indefinite
period, with its immediate holding company, Tian Teck Land Limited,
whereby the Company agrees to provide, respectively, company
secretarial services (under the administrative services agreement) and
office space and various staff (under the non-administrative services
agreement). The aggregate fees received by the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2012 amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2011:
HK$1,200,000).

(b) A management agreement exists between the Company and DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Property Management Limited (“DTZ”) whereby
DTZ is responsible for general building and property management
(except for the services relating to tenancy) of iSQUARE for an
initial period of 2 years after the date of the occupation permit. The
management agreement was renewed for another twelve months
commencing on 6 August 2011. Manager’s remuneration of
HK$579,000 (2011: HK$540,000) was paid by the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2012.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the Company
and its Subsidiaries of its Listed Securities
There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Annual Report 2011-2012 fﬁﬁw




E=aRs

£ Report of the Directors

RIE L HHRBE1321FRZHEEM
EH =

RZZEZERF+TAZ+TH  KRBINERAZHN
BRI —OREnE((mERZ]) - &
ZIBHRRTE - ARTERIRRABITREEE -

ZMmEMBEAE —Z2RHLFE & HBY
1,000,000,0007CH EEAE R M —E R AF - &
HAE#200,000,000THIBIRER © BT HRLE
HREBERZME - HERAEE TR -

REBE WS MEEREE  FBMELE
BERERELAREE(ABARARNE LT
ZERAT — RBWEFRABMZERER)TH
BEREHZEXNREMRDERAEZESHE
BRRAEETRATSZZ-+H  BER -

LB ONBEREIR - BERRITATEOED

BREEZXANFEEZREREARNRFELDN
FIEREEERMERNE R-_F——F

ZA=1T—8 FRXAENTENREAR
/4%200,000,0007T, °

HWEHHRBEEREENBERIDAFE - ARAH
RIE_EMARRIFE13.21 AR E AR 0 H SR
ERFERAELFERE -

S EALATARER SN - AR BDR A HMEARE LR
AIFE18. 211G REMELNRERT

A

s ——

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules

On 20 October 2006, the Company, as borrower, entered into a facility
agreement with a bank (the “Facility Agreement”) with covenants relating to

specific performance of its controlling shareholders.

The Facility Agreement comprises a 5-year term loan facility of up to
HK$1 billion and a 5-year revolving credit facility of up to HK$200 million. The
facilities have, subject to certain conditions, been extended for two additional

years.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default if
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam, collectively being the controlling shareholders of the
Company and its listed parent company, Tian Teck Land Limited, cease to
beneficially own, directly or indirectly, at least 25% of the issued share capital

of the Company in accordance with the terms of the Facility Agreement.

Upon the occurrence of such an event of default, the lending bank may,
among other things, demand immediate repayment of all of the outstanding
loans made to the Company under the Facility Agreement together with
accrued interest. As at 31 March 2012, the aggregate level of the facilities

that may be affected by such default was HK$200 million.

The Company will make continuing disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules in subsequent interim and annual reports for so long as the

circumstances giving rise to the relevant obligation continue to exist.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have other disclosure

obligations under Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules.
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

(@

The dollar amount of director’s emoluments of Mr Cheong Hooi Hong
for the year ended 31 March 2012 has increased by HK$354,000
to HK$2,679,000 when compared with that for the year ended
31 March 2011, due to allowances for expenses actually incurred by
him and apportionment of directors’ fees among certain directors as
a result of the resignation of a non-executive director. The policies

regarding the directors’ fees and such expenses have not changed.

The dollar amount of director’s emoluments of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim
for the year ended 31 March 2012 has increased by HK$215,000
to HK$4,104,000 when compared with that for the year ended
31 March 2011. The amount of the director’'s emoluments which is
covered by his service contract with the Company as chief operation
officer has increased by HK$132,000 to HK$3,469,000 when
compared with that for the last financial year. The increase is due to
allowances for expenses actually incurred by him and apportionment
of directors’ fees among certain directors as a result of the resignation
of a non-executive director. The policies regarding the directors’ fees

and such expenses have not changed.

The dollar amount of director’s emoluments of Mr Cheong Keng Hooi
for the year ended 31 March 2012 has decreased by HK$115,000 to
HK$1,863,000 when compared with that for the year ended 31 March
2011. The amount of the director’s emoluments which is covered
by his service contract with the Company as chief project officer has
decreased by HK$22,000 to HK$1,743,000 when compared with
that for the last financial year. The decrease is due to allowances for
expenses actually incurred by him and apportionment of directors’
fees among certain directors as a result of the resignation of a non-
executive director. The policies regarding the directors’ fees and such

expenses have not changed.
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules (continued)

©

The dollar amount of director's emoluments of Mr Cheong Sim Lam
for the year ended 31 March 2012 has increased by HK$2,000 to
HK$1,795,000 when compared with that for the year ended 31 March
2011, due to allowances for expenses actually incurred by him and
apportionment of directors’ fees among certain directors as a result of
the resignation of a non-executive director. The policies regarding the

directors’ fees and such expenses have not changed.

The dollar amount of director’'s emoluments of Miss Cheong Chong
Ling for the year ended 31 March 2012 has increased by HK$43,000
to HK$1,062,000 when compared with that for the year ended
31 March 2011, due to allowances for expenses actually incurred by
her and apportionment of directors’ fees among certain directors as
a result of the resignation of a non-executive director. The policies

regarding the directors’ fees and such expenses have not changed.

Mr Lau Wah Sum resigned as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2012. Accordingly, he ceased as
a member of both the audit committee and remuneration committee
of the Company and an alternate to Miss Cheong Chong Ling in
acting as the authorised representative of the Company on the same
day. Director’'s emoluments were paid to Mr Lau on a pro-rata basis

up to 31 December 2011.

Being a consultant to the Company with effect from 1 January 2012,

Mr Lau receives a remuneration of HK$380,000 per annum.
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the

Listing Rules (continued)

(@  The dollar amount of director’s emoluments of Mr Sin Cho Chiu,

Charles for the year ended 31 March 2012 has increased by
HK$2,000 to HK$432,000 when compared with that for the year

ended 31 March 2011, due to apportionment of directors’ fees among

certain directors as a result of the resignation of a non-executive

director. The policy regarding the directors’ fees has not changed.

Mr Sin has been appointed as an alternate to Miss Cheong Chong

Ling in acting as the authorised representative of the Company with

effect from 1 January 2012.

(h) Nomination Committee has been established with effect from

15 March 2012 with Mr Cheong Hooi Hong as committee chairman

and Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Yau Allen

Lee-nam and Mr Lee Chung as members.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Company and the

Group as at 31 March 2012 are set out in notes 23 to 25 to the financial

statements.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 119 to 120 of the annual report.

Retirement Schemes

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 28 to the financial

statements.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive

directors to be independent.

Auditors
KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Kheng Lim
Deputy Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2012
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Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 65, has been the Chairman and a director
of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983
respectively. He currently is the Chief Executive Officer and the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. He
is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and various
subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong is a member of both the CPA Australia
and the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore. He holds a
diploma from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Commerce. He
has extensive experience in property development and investment both in

Hong Kong and Singapore for over 40 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi

and Cheong Sim Lam.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 63, has been the Deputy Chairman and a
director of the Company since 1984. He has been the Deputy Chairman
and a director of Tian Teck Land Limited since 1983 and 1969 respectively.
He currently is the Chief Operation Officer of the Company and a member
of the nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited.
Mr Cheong is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

and various subsidiaries in the Group.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 59, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is the Chief
Project Officer of the Company. He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong
holds a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration from the University of

Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Sim Lam.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 53, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is the Chief
Investment Officer of the Company. He is also a director of Tian Teck
Investment Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. He
obtained a certificate in Accounting and General Business from Kapiolani

Community College, Hawaii and has over 32 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Keng Hooi.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 41, joined the Company as an assistant
to directors in 1997. She has been a director of the Company and Tian
Teck Land Limited since 2007. She is the Chief Administration Officer of the
Company. Miss Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of Science from the

School of Hotel Administration at Cornell University.

She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, a director.

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &



BRI

EXHEEEEABBABE Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

FHITES

HHEHBEE  ZFEREHE > 765 0 D AR
—hWN\RFER—NAN\RERBHEARBMRE
WEARARES  RERECARRBMRBHE
BRARERZEGNFHMEESNE - HEE
BRREMEAEFEA  BERBABXREELTE
i e R —NANEFE-NNRNFHEESRE
HRBAERF - YR —NN\ELFE-NNN\FRH
HEBBBARZMERAREE  EREE
FEZEGREREENMZESREERER
BEERZEgAELE  YAMBBAEHE
MERBEEHENTEEGAEEE -

BIERLLE 25028 EFEEEDE - ZEHF
HEBGHMRABGEREE  BESHMATERS
BBt XBIBETREL AFset
845% * DRIM—NNNFM—NN=FARBHER
NAMAREHEERARES  WAKARFR
BHERRAREZZESMFMEEGNE -
MRZE-——F—A—H - ZCEBERMER
%o RSB AARRMRIEMERR A AR
A e BIEER—NN\NFE-NARAFREER
BIERERERER L EEFAERGREHZ
gkREGEFMNTRERZBER - BILERE
EEMEAZEMZESZE AREES—L
MRRELIFITES ©

Non-executive Directors

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, OBE, aged 76, has been a director of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1985 and 1984 respectively. He
currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee
of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Sin is a solicitor and a
notary public and holds a degree of Master of Arts from the University of
Cambridge. He was Chairman of Kam Ngan Stock Exchange from 1985 to
1986 and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 1987 to 1988.
He was a former Chairman of the Home Ownership Scheme Committee
and the Management Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Authority and
a former member of the Urban Council and the Executive Committee of the

Housing Society.

Mr Lau Wah Sum, GBS, OBE, FCMA, FCPA, LLD, DBA, JP, aged 84, had
been a director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1988
and 1993 respectively. He was a member of both the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited.
Mr Lau resigned all his offices with effect from 1 January 2012. He is now
engaged by the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited as a consultant.
Mr Lau was a Legislative Councillor from 1988 to 1995, Chairman of the
Court and Council of the Hong Kong Baptist University and Chairman of
the Urban Renewal Authority. He currently is a member of the Court of the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and an independent non-

executive director of another listed company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 56, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004. He
currently also serves on the audit committee (as chairman), remuneration
committee (as chairman) and nomination committee (as member) of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Chow has significant experience
in accounting and finance and has been an Associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since 1983 and an Associate
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia since 1988 and is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr Chow is an independent non-executive director of another listed

company.

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam, aged 71, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004. He
currently also serves on the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Yau
has extensive legal knowledge and experience. He qualified as a barrister
in England in 1964 and practised as an advocate and solicitor in Singapore
and Malaysia, and as an advocate in the State of Brunei before coming to
Hong Kong. Mr Yau was admitted to Hong Kong Bar in 1985 and practised as
a barrister until 2001.

Mr Lee Chung, aged 38, has been an independent non-executive director of
the Company since 2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr Lee holds a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering from Colorado
School of Mines in the United States and a MBA degree from the University
of Warwick in the United Kingdom. He has extensive experience in venture

capital and property investment in the United States, Israel and PRC.
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Senior Management

Miss Chan Mei Yee, CPA, aged 35, is the accounting manager of
the Company. She holds an honours degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration and a degree of Master of Arts from City University of Hong
Kong. She has nearly 12 years of experience in accounting and auditing.
Prior to joining the Company in 2004, she worked for one of the big four

accounting firms.

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 61, joined the Company in 1987 and
has been the financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Company,
Miss Chan was a chief accountant of the Company’s ultimate holding
company. She has over 32 years of experience in accounting and financial

management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 55, joined the Group in 1981 and has been the

Company’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIS, ACS, aged 42, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Company in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Shareholders of

Associated International Hotels Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Associated
International Hotels Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 46 to 118,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
31 March 2012, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement
BE-ZE-—-—H£z=ZA=+—-BLEE(LBER) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012
T
$°000
BREEE Continuing operation
=2 Turnover 3 455,269 376,374
BR7S A AN Cost of services (63,291) (79,162)
EF Gross profit 391,978 297,212
- ON Other revenue 6 4,618 4,442
Hithzs 558 Other net income 6 196 8,901
1TIER Administrative expenses (36,788) (33,740)
BREYELEERE A Profit from operations before valuation
R AR & =R changes in investment properties 360,004 276,815
SEYEMERF Valuation gains on investment properties 14(a) 173,464 759,864
BREYELESRFSHE Profit from operations after valuation
R & R changes in investment properties 533,468 1,036,679
R IDIN Finance costs 7() (2,464) (9,175)
BB AR T Profit before taxation 7 531,004 1,027,504
FriS%i Income tax 10(a) (101,264) (7,555)
REFELEZ Profit for the year from
AREERF continuing operation 429,740 1,019,949
Pl <4 Discontinued operation
RERILEE 2 Profit for the year from
AEERF discontinued operation 5(a) - 202,494
A EIER I RS Profit for the year attributable to
AF A equity shareholders of the Company 11 429,740 1,222,443
BREN —EXL#E Earnings per share — basic and diluted 13
BELE Continuing operation $1.19 $2.84
R Discontinued operation - $0.56

$1.19 $3.40

F53B EF118E NN B AN RERN —5D The notes on pages 53 to 118 form part of these financial statements.

B AREESFER A TR ER SRS Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
BRKIEE12 attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 12.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BE-S-—-—H=ZA=+—BLFE(UE%5R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012
T
$°000
REERR Profit for the year 429,740
AEEHMEEmBA Other comprehensive income for the year
(HBRHERLEHNTE (after tax and reclassification
WER) adjustments):
BEFINIB AR EIHRER  Exchange differences on translation of financial
FTEARER =58 statements of overseas subsidiaries (15) 22,456
EmsEm R Surplus on revaluation of other properties 14(a) - 16,884
(15) 39,340
AEEZEBALEE Total comprehensive income for the year 429,725 1,261,783

FEE3EEFSENWEBAMBHREN—35 The notes on pages 53 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheets
R-ZB-—-F=ZA=+—8 (LB R) At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

rEE
The Group

¥ N

The Company

ERBEE Non-current assets
BEEEE Fixed assets 14
— B — Investment properties 10,047,350 9,859,010 9,968,450 9,790,510
— Hib¥= - iE  — Other properties, plant
HE and equipment 109,382 102,006 109,382 102,006
10,156,732 9,961,016 10,077,832 9,892,516
NP NGILE L T Interest in subsidiaries 15 - — 51,467 52,688
10,156,732 9,961,016 10,129,299 9,945,204
REBEE Current assets
FEUERRR - 5T & Accounts receivable, deposits
SSEUNEN and prepayments 17 40,147 56,032 39,881 54,597
REAFEM PSR Current tax recoverable 10(c) 7 209 = —
DIREIRITER Pledged bank deposits 18 276,352 502,768 276,352 502,768
BEMIBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 19 114,757 892,024 93,628 867,266
431,263 1,451,033 409,861 1,424,631
REEE Current liabilities
RITER — BEI  Bank loan — secured 23 - 200,000 - 200,000
Hib & Other payables and accruals
[EEtE R 20 82,464 145,225 82,367 142,614
2HET2 Deposits received 21 136,538 129,899 135,366 127,027
RS ®EE Provision for long service
payments 22 1,601 1,370 1,601 1,370
FEFTHIEBARIFIE  Amounts due to subsidiaries 16 - — 15,484 13,003
BB RERIE Obligations under finance leases 24 41 41 41 41
REAFERT TS Current tax payable 10(c) 39,993 - 39,838 —
260,637 476,535 274,697 484,055
REBEERE Net current assets 170,626 974,498 135,164 940,576
EEABERRE Total assets less current
=L liabilities 10,327,358 10,935,514 10,264,463 10,885,780
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BEAEX Balance Sheets
R-ZB-——F=ZA=+—H(LLB%FR) At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

rEE PN
The Group The Company

kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RITE R — HEMA Bank loan — secured 23 200,000 1,000,000 200,000 1,000,000
FETBUT B Government lease premiums
payable 25 2,193 2,240 2,193 2,240
BhE A IE Obligations under finance leases 24 79 120 79 120
ELEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 10(d) 25,278 271 25,014 220
227,550 1,002,631 227,286 1,002,580
EERE NET ASSETS 10,099,808 9,932,883 10,037,177 9,883,200
ERR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
% Share capital 26(b) 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000
s Reserves 9,739,808 9,572,883 9,677,177 9,523,200
ERAEE TOTAL EQUITY 10,099,808 9,932,883 10,037,177 9,883,200

BN T —F A\ BRI L - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2012.

N
N—=

EF EF Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim
fEEE SEIA Director Director
E53BE EF118EMMFBE RS KRR —3 D - The notes on pages 53 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-S-—-—H=ZHA=+—BLESE(LUE%5|R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

A TR RREN
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
BEA  EftRE NERE EXRE REEN
Share Revaluation Exchange Capital ~ Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve earnings
T T T T T
$000 $000 $°000 $000 $000
H2010F4 51 B&ER Balance at 1 April 2010 360,000 1,761,266 9,878 141,760 6,398,196 8,671,100
FEEEREE Changes in equity for the year:
AEERF Profit for the year - - - — 1202443 1,222,443
Hith2EBA Other comprehensive income - 16,884 10,645 11,811 - 39,340
2EA LS Total comprehensive income - 16,884 10,645 11,811 1,222,443 1,261,783
®2011%53A31R Balance at 31 March 2011
R2011E4B1 B4 and 1 April 2011 360,000 1,778,150 20,523 153,571 7,620,639 9,932,883
rEEEREE Changes in equity for the year:
REE R Profit for the year - - - - 429,740 429,740
Hiv2ERA Other comprehensive income - - (2,107) 2,002 - (15)
FHBANESE Total comprehensive income - - (2,107) 2,092 429,740 429,725
BN E—BIEE#AE  Dividends approved in respect of
o]y the previous financial year 12(b) - - - —  (162,000)  (162,000)
BRAMBEEER Dividends declared in respect of
o]y the current financial year 12(a) - - - —  (100,800)  (100,800)
- - (2,107) 2,092 166,940 166,925
M2012E3A31 B4R  Balance at 31 March 2012 360,000 1,778,150 18,416 155,663 7,787,579 10,099,808

F53E ZE118E MM T B AR FRRA—F D The notes on pages 53 to 118 form part of these financial statements.

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE-ZE-—-—HF£=ZA=+—-BLEE(LBER) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012
Frx Fr T
$°000 $°000 $'000
KRR Operating activities
R A A Profit before taxation
— FEKE — Continuing operation 531,004 1,027,504
— R — Discontinued operation = 202,495
531,004 1,229,999
FEEIEE - Adjustments for:
— FLEHA — Interest income (2,909) (3,352)
— BMERK — Finance costs 2,464 9.175
— e — Depreciation 7,048 6,583
— REWMEMERTF] — Valuation gains on investment
properties (173,464) (759,864)
— REETEE — Net loss/(gain) on disposal of
&1 CiF))FE8  fixed assets 60 (203,837)
— SNEE R Z A — Foreign exchange gains (274) (57)
(167,075) (951,352)
BELSSEHA Operating profit before
A changes in working capital 363,929 278,647
FERL Decrease in inventories - 244
JEUERSK ~ T2 Decrease/(increase) in accounts
MIERFR receivable, deposits and
B (38hn) prepayments 15,749 (527)
EMpEN TR EET  (Decrease)/increase in other
BRACHD), 1B payables and accruals (42,705) 23,619
B UET &1 0 Increase in deposits received 6,615 26,820
REARS & 2 Increase/(decrease) in provision
i, CRd) for long service payments 231 (29)
FET R AT B R ) Decrease in government lease
premiums payable (44) (44)
(20,154) 50,083
RE KB Cash generated from
HWRE operations 343,775 328,730
2R Tax paid
— BENEBFBHE  — Hong Kong profits tax paid (36,060) (207)
— BANEsINRIE — Overseas tax paid @ ®)
(36,062) (213)
RETEHRE Net cash generated from
KBS FREE operating activities 307,713 328,517
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HEBELMER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE-ZE-—-—H£=ZA=t+—-BLEE(LBEHR) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RERES

RV

BABEEENK
(TEEREME)

SEMEHAR

REETEEEMS
A

EHEIPRITER
B ()

REFHHRE
HREFE

BMEES

ENREHERS
MEARED

B EUTHE TS

BEERRITER
RITERG IR
ERRITEFFE
ENEAMERRA
SN
mEER(FTA),Fis
MRS

BeRBESEEY
(), EhFEE
#A2011/201054 811

HRERRESEY

IEERSBHE

MN3A3MEWESE
RESZEY

Tr
$000

Investing activities
Interest received 3,064
Payment for purchase of fixed
assets other than investment
properties (14,484)
Payment for expenditure on
investment properties (33,870)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed
assets -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged

bank deposits 226,416

Net cash generated from
investing activities

Financing activities
Capital element of finance lease
rentals paid (41)
Interest paid on government
lease premiums payable (115)
(1,000,000)
Proceeds from bank loan -
(8,175)
(268)
(262,800)

Repayment of bank loan

Interest paid on bank loan
Other borrowing costs paid
Dividends paid

Net cash (used in)/generated
from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 April 2011/2010

Effect of foreign exchange
rates changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 March 19

2012

Tr
$000

181,126

(1,266,399)

(777,560)

892,024

293

114,757

T
$°000

2,891
(1,861)
(100,484)
511,794
(342,966)

69,374
(35)
(115)
95,000
(7,600)
(160)

87,090

484,981

405,212

1,831

892,024

SEO3EEE 18 AMM LB AN BwmEA —5D

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &

The notes on pages 53 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% 5)R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

FTESFBE

(@

BREHR

A REREHBRELESFTMAE
BT A ERANCERTBERE
) BB EMEERNEIKE
BUBHREEL) (BEGFHER)
MRE  BEARGARAMEE
CRBMEDIDRREREL - ARITETREK
RN ERKEEBMEXXSME
RARER ETHRANDKERE - U
TEASERANEIZEFEREM

o

BEGERAGRED T A TR
RIEFTHCEBMBIMELER) - ZF
ERNEAREEMARAE RN
BB R AR A IR R A - ffEE2
TR A R 006 M8 R 45 L B K SR (14 R
W E R AR R AR LRI E 1L
Al BE AT M A &5t BB & 5T

1

Significant Accounting Policies

(@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8®%5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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EEHM  HERBRTEREEE
ERBEA SRR MEERAE
VBRI (B RS PTIE L HI B A 7 - IR
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EIRE G T EER S IAMEFIERE &
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R MREFTHE A AARAARISE
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EINHERR -
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &

Basis of preparation of the financia
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2012 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investment properties are stated at their fair value as explained

in the accounting policies set out in note 1(d).

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

(see note 1(u)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is

no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their

proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders

of the Company.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8®%5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is

recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(h)(i)), unless

the investment is classified as held for sale.
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(f)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value, unless they are still in the course of construction or
development at the balance sheet date and their fair value
cannot be reliably determined at that time. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted

for as described in note 1(p)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(f)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(f).

Other properties, plant and equipment
Other properties, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation (see note 1(g)) and impairment

losses (see note 1(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1 FEESHBE@® 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(d)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(i

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(g). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(h)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an

investment property (see note 1(d)).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(9)

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other
properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more

than 40 years after the date of

completion
— Furniture, fixtures 5 years
and equipment
— Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets

(h)

U

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
accounts and other receivables

Investments in subsidiaries and accounts and other
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one

or more of the following loss events:
— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 1(h)(i). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with

note 1(h)(ii).
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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FESHHE @) 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

@

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and

accounts and other receivables (Continued)

— For accounts and other receivables carried
at amortised cost, the impairment losses of
bad and doubtful debts are measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of accounts receivable,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the

AR - EFREMEMES) allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
FEZ U B F 7l H 2P A8 account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
BB ER © previously written off directly are recognised in profit or

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &

loss.
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1 FEESHHFE @ 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(h) EBEBE®E (h) Impairment of assets (Continued)
iy EMEERE (i) Impairment of other assets

rEEESEEERBREER
HEHRABMINRAES - A
BEEMYE  BEERER
BHBERELSR - KB AERE
REVRER BT BIFER AR
2R -

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
other properties, plant and equipment may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased.

IMRBBREMERTR - BIZ

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

EREER - SRR
AT R AR RBR 2
MEWNRERE  ZhR
R &R AR5 8 B FTRT
N EBHHREENZE
ENBAERR - REE
FEEHNRERAER L
TEINEMEEMESE
R ERA - BIAREEL
EERSRANRNEE
BERI(BNREEEETT) K
BETE FTU I BIER -

HRRERS

MREEXMBRSESE
BT EEREE SN E T
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WERRERE - LIRS E
EETHERNRERR
SRR ZET (3K
ZABT)AEENRE
B BEENREENS
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E) e

BENT W EIEES TG - amount is estimated.
TEAE g —  Calculation of recoverable amount
A ER AU I B RE A 2 The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
REERELEXAEM of its fair value less costs to sell and value in
BEEMEFEAEEME use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
FHREE A% - fLiHE future cash flows are discounted to their present

value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value

less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8®%5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

(i)

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.

Inventories
Inventories comprise of stocks of beverages and consumables,

are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated on the first-in, first-out basis and comprises
all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

0)

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts (see note 1(h)()), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost

less allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts.

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash

flow statement.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(m) Employee benefits

(")

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan

which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(")

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(d),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the balance sheet date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.
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1 EFESTHEER@ 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(n) FriE3%iE) (n) Income tax (Continued)
REAFRET B R HE B e s Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
FHIR - WA T o ANEFFELE movements therein, are presented separately from each
MIEBEEERSEARNRSAEREE other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
EATEREARNEAT I8 E E R AN AR current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
BEE  WAFEUTHEEENS tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
ST o AR AD R SE AN HA AR RE RS enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
HAEE: tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— ZXRHMBEEEMEE : AQF — inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
AN E B AL FE A EL Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
g AR ZEENGE net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
ZafE ok simultaneously; or
— BREMBEEENEE: E&&F — in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
EMEENEER—RB e relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
AT HAP —HRBUKRH TSR authority on either:
B
— R—EREE: =k —  the same taxable entity; or
—  TENEHERE - G&E —  different taxable entities, which, in each future
BrrEE R R EEEE period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
REELEHTBEERTEE liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
B KRR IBEER recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
LA IR BB A - $2055R and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
AL ABRHIEEMN or realise and settle simultaneously.

BEASRAEER XA
RERZEENREZA

& -
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Golf and recreational club and related services
Revenue arising from golf and recreational club operation

is recognised when the relevant services are provided.
(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(@)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange

reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss

on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parties

(s)

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operation

(u)

U

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that

will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when
the above criteria for classification as held for sale are
met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-

controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below),
or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale,
are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current
asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the non-

current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Annual Report 2011-2012 fﬁﬁb
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(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(u) Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operation (Continued)

(i)

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a

subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also

occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the income

statement, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued

operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)

constituting the discontinued operation.
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 BIFBENEH 2 Changes in Accounting Policies
BBESHMAGHEMN T ZIECE B BRE The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs and
ERADNEEST R —TEHRE - ERETRFT one new Interpretation that are first effective for the current accounting

REEREENARARE NG HEEX period of the Group and the Company. Of these, the following

R o B AR B L BACER [ 1 B 75
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— (EEPBHREERDNUCE (20105F)

EERRIE B BRI
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It REBBERFG T BN S
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KEMERTE - (FEGHER)
52455 (20095 &1ERT) TMERR T B
IR ERNBEER - ARAEE
WIFBTREER - AN AEEY

5,40
327

— (EBEAUBMEERN)HKHE (2010
F)RAEAECE BT BIRE %R
FIHIEHMTE : BEINEEEK
REZIEER] - Wi2r &R EHEAE
BRI EMNBERERA T EBETNRE
B ESK o F LS RT I E BRI AT HARE
R RA P EERNEENDHE -

developments are relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

The impacts of these developments are discussed below:

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a related party.
As a result, the Group has re-assessed the identification of
related parties and concluded that the revised definition does
not have any material impact on the Group’s related party
disclosures in the current and previous periods. HKAS 24
(revised 2009) also introduces modified disclosure requirements
for government-related entities. This does not impact the Group
because the Group is not a government-related entity.

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard introduces
a number of amendments to the disclosure requirements in
HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures. The disclosures
about the Group’s financial instruments in note 27 have
been conformed to the amended disclosure requirements.
These amendments do not have any material impact on the
classification, recognition and measurements of the amounts

AN ELBEIMNEATE

recognised in the financial statements in the current and
previous periods.

7R 6% 18] 30 % BR PR AT ) 7E % A 5T A M e R
EREFTER SRR - EREKEB G
ADEE125R[ RSB HER] @ IR(B AR
HERDFAOTEREME N DA BEAR
IR EMEMIRCEB S ERDE 165 )
¥ BERRE IAEGEFTENITEN
BEMBERZEEFIARMERIN - ZIEFTR
TR F - A B EFBNFEHE
X BEZERTFFAMERT  ARED
RBE-ZT——F=A=+—HIIFERTF
BRANGZIERT

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period, with the exception
of the amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes, in respect of the
recognition of deferred tax on investment properties carried at fair
value under HKAS 40, Investment property, and non-depreciable
assets measured using the revaluation model in HKAS 16, Property,
plant and equipment. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012, but as permitted by the
amendments, the Group decided to adopt the amendments during
the year ended 31 March 2011.
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B#BEMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Turnover
The principal activity of the Group is property investment after the
Group’s golf and recreational club operation has been classified as

discontinued operation as set out in note 5.

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in

turnover during the year is as follows:

2012
Fr
$°000
FERE Continuing operation
REYEMEBEHES A Gross rentals from investment properties 455,269 376,374
miEgE Discontinued operation
SEESZGEE S AN Revenue from golf and recreational club operation
(Mi3E5(a)) (note 5(a)) - 17,010
S+ ;
DEBERE Segment Reporting

REBIRERIEE R IR B 8| 5 B0
TER - EHAFZ2RTAEERSTHE
B ABEHERD B RBRFENER A
BT A —HHERT - AEE D HEE R EA
BENE - DRIAIMERE IR SEKRR
BERKE ] SBRRRESKECE D
BREREKE  HBEBRERDISNHES -
2IIRFEEERPENFEELENERA
ERAREDEHIMERE IWER -

ENAEEYERENBANEEREE
B MARESBARREES L E YA
FEHTRREHRAE - BUbRIEEER
WEPRZNWERBES - Bt - RIEER
WHEB 25

The Group manages its businesses by segments which are organised
by business lines and geography. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified two reportable
segments, namely “Property leasing” and “Golf and recreational
club operation”. The golf and recreational club operation has been
classified as discontinued operation and the related information has
been set out in note 5. The information regarding continuing operation
as presented in the consolidated income statement represents the

information of the other reportable segment, property leasing.

Geographical information presents similar information as the Group’s
revenue and results of property leasing were derived from Hong Kong,
while the Group’s revenue and results of the golf and recreational club
operation were primarily derived from Malaysia. Therefore, no separate

geographical information is presented.

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIBEEIEAR A &
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5 #RibKE 5 Discontinued Operation

REFER -E——FE=A-HEKEEN On 2 March 2011, the Group completed the disposal of properties
RERALNYE - ZWETERIESH K located in Malaysia mainly comprising the golf course land, the golf
Mgt EEReRANE T FASR resort which is situated on the golf course land, the condominium land
KEOEBMN « FELHNEFE M - BT and the bungalow land, and the Group’s golf and recreational club
HER  AEENSBARELS KL I operation ceased thereafter.

BUARIE o

(a) REERLFERILEER (@) The results of the discontinued operation for

EEWNT . the current and prior years are as follows:

BRERRELERE

Golf and recreational

club operation

E-0 Turnover 3 - 17,010
RRFESEERK AN Cost of services/sales - (11,554)
EF Gross profit = 5,456
HUA Other revenue - 1,623
U s 58 Other net income - 100
BEETEER Gain on disposal of fixed assets = 203,831

HEE Selling expenses - (544)
THEMR Administrative expenses — (7,971)
R Profit from operations — 202,495
S =Vp N Finance costs — _

BR T AR A Profit before taxation = 202,495
PR Income tax 10(a) - )
REERR Profit for the year — 202,494
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B#BEMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5 #RIEKE @ 5 Discontinued Operation (continued)
b) REER EFERIELEH (b) The cash flows of the discontinued
HEREBWT : operation for the current and prior years are
as follows:

BREXRELERE

Golf and recreational

club operation

R FTAMIR S FRE Net cash used in operating activities - (514,467)
REEBFERNIREF5E Net cash generated from investing activities = 511,986
RenEFH Net cash flows — (2,481)
6 HtWARKRFER 6 Other Revenue and Net Income
2012
Tt
$°000
Hig A Other revenue
FBULA Interest income 2,909 3,029
IR A RN ER A IR & Management fee received from holding company 1,200 1,200
Hth Others 509 213
4,618 4,442
Hita= 8 Other net income
BEETEE Net (loss)/gain on disposal of fixed assets
(E518), A58 (60) 6
SMNEETE H B R F R Net foreign exchange gains 256 8,895
196 8,901

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIBEEIEAR A &
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 BRBIBDRF 7  Profit Before Taxation
BRAIFDEF IR, (GTA)MEENT - 1 Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the
MR EEE R (T A) BRKIEK amounts as set out below. The disclosures presented in this
BB o note include those amounts charged/(credited) in respect of the

discontinued operation.

2012
T
$°000
(@ ®ERAK (a) Finance costs
RITERRE Interest on bank loan 2,065 8,920
FENRTEUTHB RS Interest on government lease premiums
payable 113 115
EMEERA Other borrowing costs 286 140
2,464 9,175
(b) BIA (o)  Staff costs
¥ TERHMEN Salaries, wages and other benefits 36,406 42,162
FEHFCRIRET SR Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,248 1,468
37,654 43,630
(c) HfER ()  Otheritems
KEMENHES WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties (455,269) (376,374)
B B Less: Direct outgoings 63,291 79,162
(391,978) (297,212)
KEHEBR  HIEEE Operating lease charges: minimum lease
N — WEEe payments — property rentals = 361
FEMER SR E Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment
18, OrEkEEE) losses) on accounts receivable 577 (683)
FEKA Cost of inventories
(BEEFEEHESIT (including write off of inventories of Nil
(20114F : 212,0007T)) (2011: $212,000)) - 1,875
%R & Auditor’s remuneration
— ZEARTS — audit services 645 687
— B R — tax services 182 199
— E AR — other services 166 189
E Depreciation 7,048 6,583
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8 EEM=E 8 Directors’ Remuneration
RIEE B THEDYE 161185 B = S Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
Eoy/UNE Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

e R L3N 2012
E=ne REYFIE BETEAL B okl
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Tr T T T Tr
$°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
HITES Executive Directors
EEE Cheong Hooi Hong 52 1,927 700 = 2,679
BB Cheong Kheng Lim 52 3,334* 700 18 4,104
e Cheong Keng Hooi 52 1,511 300 - 1,863
gz boded] Cheong Sim Lam 52 1,443 300 = 1,795
EIRS Cheong Chong Ling 52 872 120 18 1,062
FHTES Non-executive Directors
B RR Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 52 380 - - 432
Rz Lau Wah Sum
(R=ZZ——%F (resigned with effect
—F—HB#HE) from 1 January 2012) 38 285 = = 323
BAFEHIT Independent Non-executive
2 Directors
AEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 - - - 170
hESE Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 - - - 170
EZ/N Lee Chung 170 = = = 170
860 9,752 2,120 36 12,768
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8 EEMEw 8 Directors’ Remuneration continued)
RIEE B THEDYE 161185 B = S Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
£ (88) Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: (Continued)

e o 2R
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
HITESE Executive Directors
BEEE Cheong Hool Hong 50 1,575 700 - 2,325
$EIBM Cheong Kheng Lim 50 3,121* 700 18 3,889
EmE Cheong Keng Hool 50 1,628 300 - 1,978
g Cheong Sim Lam 50 1,443 300 - 1,793
ERK Cheong Chong Ling 50 831 120 18 1,019

FHITES Non-executive Directors

A Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 - — 430
FER Lau Wah Sum 50 380 - - 430
BI T Independent Non-executive
B= Directors

[EEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 - - - 170
k25 Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 - - - 170
ESN Lee Chung 170 - - - 170
860 9,358 2,120 36 12,374

* EHEITEEMEEMTCERBETEDE * The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential

KRR A - EH R (E S F 49 % 3,066,000 7T properties to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an aggregate estimated rental

—Z——% :3,066,0007T) ° value of approximately $3,066,000 (2011: $3,066,000).
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 EaMEAL 9 Individuals with Highest Emoluments
R —F R T —FFEANESME The five highest paid individuals for 2011 and 2012 are all directors of
BWATHRARRATNES - HMESEIIER the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8.
PiES o
10 FrE#t 10 Income Tax
(@ HZEBRKRFITHEHE (@) Taxation in the consolidated income
A statement represents:
2012
Fr
$°000
AHABIE — FRFEH Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax
INEE IR Provision for the year 50,379 —
DEFEREEBTR Under-provision in respect of prior years 25,878 —
76,257 —
AEABIE — B Current tax — Overseas
NEFETHIEERE Provision for the year — 1
ELEHIE Deferred tax
TR EREMEEMED Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 25,007 7,555
101,264 7,556
xE : Attributable to:
SFEEICE Continuing operation 101,264 7,555
4R E R (MT7E5B(a)) Discontinued operation (note 5(a)) = 1
101,264 7,556
BEAENNEREBRIEAFTENMHE The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5%
JERREHE R A16.5% (T ——4F : (2011: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
16.5% ) BT R E o BINHTE A A Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
KO IE LAMA BA B R iE R M IR 1T B R AT current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.
& .
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 Fff * (%&) 10 Income Tax (Continued)
(b) Fri5 %R X MR E AR (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
EEiHafmEER - accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
2012
Fr
$°000
B A A Profit before taxation 531,004 1,229,999
RRERBEERIES Notional tax on profit before taxation,
A BB AR R E calculated at the rates applicable to
MRE AR A B E IR profits in the countries concerned 87,559 212,616
TR S HEFRIE R 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 16,743 20,154
A BN TIEE Tax effect of non-taxable income (28,916) (201,779)
AERERHEREN Tax effect of temporary differences not
HiEzE recognised — (1,982)
NEEFERAEEEY Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses utilised
BBEBENTEYE this year - (21,453)
DAFEEEBTR Under-provision in prior years 25,878 —
R Actual tax expense 101,264 7,556
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B#BEMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 FriS®ti 10 Income Tax (continued)
c) BEESBRARNAHRE (c) Current taxation in the balance sheets
HA represents:

EE AT

The Group The Company

RNEFEBFEHR  Provision for Hong Kong

A profits tax for the year 50,379 — 50,224 —
EREHFIEH  Provisional profits tax paid (31,547) (204) (31,547) —
18,832 (204) 18,677 —

AFEFEFER Balance of profits tax

EELER provision relating to
prior years 21,161 - 21,161 —
39,993 (204) 39,838 —
YN Overseas taxation @) ) = -
39,986 (209) 39,838 —

RE&: Representing:

AREAFEWETSHL  Current tax recoverable 7) (209) - —
REAFE FTIS R Current tax payable 39,993 — 39,838 —
39,986 (209) 39,838 -
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 Fﬁ?%*ﬁ(gﬁ) 10 Income Tax (continued)
(d) CERELEHREEENES (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
0 AEEH ()  The Group
EEFEEAERBERERNE The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
EHIE(EE) AEMENKEE recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the
DMAFEZEIMT movements during the year are as follows:

BB E
HITERBIER
Depreciation
allowances

in excess of

the related

depreciation Tax loss
T T
$°000 $°000

RETHIRIEM  Deferred tax arising from:

ELEHIE ¢
M20105E4 818 At1 April 2010 8,610 (15,894) (7,284)
fEEET (Credited)/charged to

(Bt A,/ Hk profit or loss (6,092) 13,647 7,555
R20114F3A31H At 31 March 2011 2,518 (2,247) 271
R2011F4818  At1 April 2011 2,518 (2,247) 271
Bk Charged to profit or loss 22,760 2,247 25,007
M201243A31H At 31 March 2012 25,278 = 25,278
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BEHERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 FriS®ti
d) EERELEFEEENESE
(&)
iy ARFA
EEEEARERERNELER
B(EE) /BENHARBS M
NEFEEHOT

10 Income Tax (continued)
(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(Continued)
(i) The Company
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the balance sheet and the movements

during the year are as follows:

BT
T ERBE

Depreciation
allowances
in excess of

the related

depreciation Tax loss
T T
$°000 $°000

RETHKIEH  Deferred tax arising from:

ELEBIE ¢
R2010%F481H  At1 April 2010 8,681 (15,894) (7,213)
friEzEs (Credited)/charged to

GINVEiI] profit or loss (6,405) 13,838 7,433
M201143H831H At 31 March 2011 2,276 (2,056) 220
R20115E481H  At1 April 2011 2,276 (2,056) 220
BRIk Charged to profit or loss 22,738 2,056 24,794
P201243A31H At 31 March 2012 25,014 - 25,014

Associated International Hotels Limited glH#EIBRE/E B R A A
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B HERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 FTE5#@

11

(e)

RERWELERIBEE !
RBH (N T ETECEE - AR
REBEEENBB A ERMNE R
REARRERD R FIAKEE
B AEEmMARKREFELCES T
(ZZ——4% : 50,00070) ) BT FL %
BIEERE ERELEHIBEE - BRI
BITHOE - LB EIBTRERR
Hi o

NAEDRREEARNFER

A

NAEERREEFREEANBE 28
F A A A &) B R 3R &9 416,777,000 7T
(ZZT——% :1,225,889,0007T )% F °

10 Income Tax (continued)
(e) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(n),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of Nil (2011: $50,000) for continuing
operation as it is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under

current tax legislation.

11 Profit for the Year Attributable to Equity
Shareholders of the Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a profit of $416,777,000 (2011: $1,225,889,000)

which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 IRE 12 Dividends
@ TFEEERFMLAREZRRRER (@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
B the Company attributable to the year
2012
Fi
$°000
BEIR AR ERE Interim dividend declared and paid of
FH%0.287T(20114F = 4%) $0.28 per share (2011: Nil) 100,800 —
REEBBEREEHREES Final dividend proposed after the balance
IR AR EINE B & H%0.557T sheet date of $0.55 per share
(20114 : §MR0.457T) (2011: $0.45 per share) 198,000 162,000
298,800 162,000
REEABRAEEHREZRDRNR The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has
HREMATEEABERSES HER not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.
RBfE-

b) BRE-—MEBFEENAT (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
REFERE  WAKRFEEHE of the Company attributable to the previous
REZAFHRE financial year, approved and paid during the

year

2012

Frx

$°000

BRE—HBFE TR Final dividend in respect of the previous
ANF EHEAE RS AT H financial year, approved and paid during
RERRR B FA%0.457T the year, of $0.45 per share (2011: Nil)
(20114 : %) 162,000 —
13 SIRERN — EARN#E 13 Earnings Per Share — Basic and Diluted

ERERABIZEBAFEN AT ERZR The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the

RIE(R 4R G & F1429,740,000T (=& —— consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

1 1,222,443,0007T) © EFREFHEK of $429,740,000 (2011: $1,222,443,000) represented by the profit

LR R B 429,740,000 (—ZFE — —4F - from continuing operation of $429,740,000 (2011: $1,019,949,000)

1,019,949,0007T ) & 7K B #2 1 &8 &5 5| A& and the profit from discontinued operation of Nil (2011: $202,494,000),

T (ZF——%F 1 202,494,0007T) * &E and 360,000,000 (2011: 360,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during

BE1THYE B AR 360,000,0000% ( — & ——4F : the year. There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in existence

360,000,000 )5t & - —E——FR_F in 2011 and 2012.

—CEWEBEEREE AR

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 BEEEE 14 Fixed Assets
(a) A&EE (@) The Group
RENE HitW% - BERRSE
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HERFER
BENX Hbs HftEE it b
Properties held
for leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T T i i o
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
BAR{EE - Cost or valuation:
R2011E4R1B At April 2011 9,859,010 100,464 22,024 122,488 9,981,498
BE Additions 14,876 - 14,484 14,484 29,360
RE Disposals - - (4,910) (4,910) (4,910)
DrBERE Fair value adjustments 173,464 - = - 173,464
120124634318 At31 March 2012 10,047,350 100,464 31,508 132,062 10,179,412
% Representing:
A Cost - 100,464 31,508 132,062 132,062
{&E—2012%F  Valuation — 2012 10,047,350 - - - 10,047,350
10,047,350 100,464 31,598 132,062 10,179,412
REHTE Accumulated depreciation:
R2OME4A1E At April 2011 - 10,308 10,174 20,482 20,482
TEERE Charge for the year - 3,444 3,604 7,048 7,048
REERMN Written back on disposals - - (4,850) (4,850) (4,850)
7201243 A31H  At31 March 2012 - 18,752 8,928 22,680 22,680
RERE: Net book value:
120124634318 At31 March 2012 10,047,350 86,712 22,670 109,382 10,156,732
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 BEEEE @) 14 Fixed Assets continued)
(a) AEEH@@ (@ The Group (Continued)

Investment

properties

BENE

Properties held
for leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total
T T i i
$000 $000 $000 $000

BASR{EE - Cost or valuation:

R2010F4A18 At 1 April 2010 9,044,420 140,464 20,468 160,932 9,205,352
BinE Reclassfication 39,500 (56,884) - (56,884) (17,384)
wE Additions 15,226 - 1,789 1,789 17,015
RE Disposals - - (239) (239) 239)
Ry Surplus on revaluation - 16,884 - 16,884 16,884
AhBERE Fair value adjustments 759,864 - - - 759,864
R2011E3A318 At 31 March 2011 9,859,010 100,464 22,024 122,488 9,981,498
% Representing:
B Cost - 100,464 22,024 122,488 122,488
fEE—2011E  Valuation — 2011 9,859,010 - - - 9,859,010
9,859,010 100,464 22,024 122,488 9,981,498
2iHE Accumulated depreciation:
M2010E4 18 At 1 April 2010 - 24,248 7,268 31,616 31,616
KEERE Charge for the year - 3444 3,139 6,583 6,583
RERAD Written back on disposals - - (233) (233) (233)
By Recassflication - (17,384) - (17,384) (17,384)
M2011E3A31H  At31 March 2011 - 10,308 10,174 20,482 20,482
BEFE: Net book value:
M2011E3H318  At31 March 2011 9,859,010 90,156 11,850 102,006 9,961,016
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

— _ .
14 BEEEE @) 14 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) ZAAFE] (b) The Company
REM= Hiph% - BERRE
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HERGER
BENE Hh% HihgE it b
Properties held
for leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
Tr T Tr Tr r
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
RASMEE - Cost or valuation:
R20TE4A1E At April 2011 9,790,510 100,464 22,024 122,488 9,912,998
#E Additions 14,876 - 14,484 14,484 29,360
BE Disposals - - (4,910) (4,910) (4,910)
DrEESRE Fair value adjustments 163,064 - - - 163,064
12012463A31H  At31 March 2012 9,968,450 100,464 31,598 132,062 10,100,512
RE: Representing:
A Cost - 100,464 31,598 132,062 132,062
fHE—2012F  Valuation — 2012 9,968,450 = = = 9,968,450
9,968,450 100,464 31,598 132,062 10,100,512
REHTE Accumulated depreciation:
P2011E4A1E  At1 April 2011 - 10,308 10,174 20,482 20,482
KEERE Charge for the year - 3,444 3,604 7,048 7,048
RERED Written back on dlisposals - - (4,850) (4,850) (4,850)
20123 A31H  At31 March 2012 - 13,752 8,928 22,680 22,680
EEFE: Net book value:
12012463431 At31 March 2012 9,968,450 86,712 22,670 109,382 10,077,832
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 BEEEE @) 14 Fixed Assets continued)
(b) AT &) (b) The Company (Continued)

Investment

properties QOther properties, plant and equipment

EiEE

Properties held
for leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total
T T 7 T
$000 $000 $/000 $000

BASR{EE - Cost or valuation:

A2010E4818  At1 Apri 2010 9,044,420 100,464 20,468 120,932 9,165,352
g Additions 14,517 - 1789 1789 16,306
RE Disposals - - (233) (233) (233)
ARABERE Fair value adjustments 731,573 - - - 731573
F2011E3 4318 At31 March 2011 9,790,510 100,464 22,004 122,488 9,912,998
RE: Representing:
AR Cost - 100,464 22,024 122,488 122,488
fHE—2011E  Valuation — 2011 9,790,510 - - - 9,790,510
9,790,510 100,464 22,004 122,488 9,912,998
RETE Accumulated depreciation:
201054518 At1 Apri 2010 - 6,864 7,268 14,132 14,132
KEERE Charge for the year - 3444 3,139 6,583 6,583
RERAD Written back on disposals - - (233) (233) (233)
F2011E3 4318 At31 March 2011 - 10,308 10,174 20,482 20,482
REFE . Net book value:
M2011E3F31H  At31 March 2011 9,790,510 90,156 11,850 102,006 9,802,516
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 EEEE @

(©

(d)

YIREREFERNZDATANT

14 Fixed Assets (continued)

(©

The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:

AEME
The Group

¥ NNE
The Company

EEE In Hong Kong

— REHEE — Long leases 86,684 76,705 7,784 8,205

— RHEE — Medium-term leases 10,047,378 9,872,461 10,047,378 9,872,461
10,134,062 9,949,166 10,055,162 9,880,666

REBE-ZT——F=A=+—HIt
FE —BERAERANYMECHE
REERE - ZEWEZEREE
39,500,000 T (BIZIEWME R B ig &
F2BZARBE)BEEH EdY
FXIEATREYE] BREZ - Hi
Y E (L R #42/516,884,0007T B R H
2R A P ERIL RN ERFHRE
A o

R-TE——FZA=+—08  &EY
¥BEERES  HEIERNED
ETEMEBEESRLH—E - 5
BB RN B AN REESH—
B  —EIERENETEL KW
EEEE -

RZBE—=—F=A=+—0 "  URE
BHIREYERH —HBIEEME
B — BRI EERAEMBR AT

(EEIHAEEBAEMBEER
GEER  AHWEHIMERE
B RFTEBARIE IR &%)
HEITEMN - EETAERNMEZTE
RER(RMESTR) - 2RMHEU
RHER  RESBEBEAT - BFEHE
SUIMAB AW ATRLBREEL
FRFR S W A INAYBTERE S ©

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the intended use of a
property previously held for own use was changed to leasing
purpose. This property with carrying amount of $39,500,000,
being the fair value of the property at the date of change in
use, was transferred from “other properties” to “investment
properties” accordingly. As a result of the transfer, a revaluation
surplus of $16,884,000 on other properties was recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the

revaluation reserve.

At 31 March 2012, investment properties comprise iISQUARE,
certain units of Good Luck Industrial Building and a floor of Euro
Trade Centre. Other properties comprise a floor of iISQUARE,
certain units of an industrial property, and two residential

properties in Hong Kong.

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued at
31 March 2012 by Vigers Appraisal And Consulting Limited,
an independent firm of professional valuers who have among
their staff Fellows of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category of properties
being valued, on a market value basis in their existing states
by reference to comparable market transactions and where
appropriate on the basis of capitalisation of the net rental

income allowing for reversionary income potential.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8®%5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 BElEEE @)
() HuBELERM RB  BERS
ﬁo

Q) RAFERN AEETEFORER
ERENRAZRE (ZT—F
52,0007T) - REEBRBEREER
AEENBERERENRAEH
HEREFE5116,000T (=T ——
4 :158,0007T) °

(h) AEEELEEERLRENE &
LAEBRVASRMEE+TE B
EEEETIPARESR  BRAE
BRI EFEE #BHE-T—=F
A=+ —BIEFERBREETER
AW AR AFHEE A17,233,0007T

(ZZ——% :7,983,0007T) °

EERERARELAEEHE
BAMETEOFENE  UEHE
REEME -

AEBERBEIAERNEEHETER
BENNRERENRBLBNT

s ——

14 Fixed Assets continued)

()

(9)

Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor

vehicles.

During the year, there was no addition to office equipment of
the Group financed by new finance lease (2011: $52,000). At
the balance sheet date, the net book value of office equipment
held under finance leases of the Group was $116,000 (2011:
$158,000).

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to ten years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which
time all terms are renegotiated. Contingent rentals recognised
as income in the income statement during the year ended
31 March 2012 were $17,233,000 (2011: $7,983,000).

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment property are classified as

investment property.

The total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows:

REE LN
The Group The Company

2012 2012

T , T

$°000 $°000
1FRN Within 1 year 300,904 378,467 298,442 376,005

1F1&B5F R After 1 year but within

5 years 254,576 452,110 254,576 449,648
5% 1% After 5 years 31,034 43,487 31,034 43,487
586,514 874,064 584,052 869,140
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 BEEEE @)
(i) EEIKH (i
REEBBEXRGEER  HRITERR
A BR 118 4 10,016,000,000 7 ( =&
——4F : 9,845,000,0007T ) K &l 7 &
EVERIER (28K zE23)

15 R B R B ERE 15

14 Fixed Assets (continued)

Pledge of assets

At the balance sheet date, fixed assets with carrying value of
$10,016,000,000 (2011: $9,845,000,000) were pledged to

secure the bank loan (see note 23).

Interest in Subsidiaries

AT
The Company

FE_ETARD (3RAAN) Unlisted shares, at cost 31,084 31,084
T s Amountdue romasubsidlary - a0 67,368
B OREEE Less: Impairment losses (46,996) (45,764)
20,383 21,604
51,467 52,688

EUM B AR RBERLEERE - 28 - W
BEEERE - ZRBEBEFTIER—FAYK
[@] o within

one year.

Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and has no

fixed repayment terms. The balance is not expected to be recovered
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15 KB A B IR @) 15 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)
THRIEAEFEREHNBATE - BRE The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the
FRRE SN - TS ERMRMIE AT B - Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Pl st fl
Proportion of ownership interest
EME IR HAAR HNE
B BETRABRREFE &R G
Place of
incorporation Particulars of issued held by the held by
Name of company and operation and paid up capital Company subsidiary  Principal activity
Associated International b 2R ERAEEI0T R 100% - RAEBRR
Resorts Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $10 each Investment holding
REERAA 0 20000085 KA {E1 T2 MKl 100% - BEYR
Diamond Town Limited Hong Kong 200,000 shares of $1 each Property holding
Austin Hils Land Sdn. Bhd. SRAED 21,000,002 B R E(E - 100% BEEET
Malaysia EREZTITZ RN In the process of voluntary
21,000,002 shares of MYR1 each liquidation
Austin Hills Country Resort Bh. SRER 10,001 285 BREEERBEZTIT - 99.09% EEEED ()
Malaysia B RIsARELRERAE In the process of voluntary
BERBLTITZ RN liquidation (Note)

10,001,285 shares of MYR1 each and

754 preference shares of MYR1 each

Austin Hills View San. Bnd. SRES MEREEFRAETI TR - 100% EEEET
Malaysia 2 shares of MYR1 each In the process of voluntary

liquidation

Austin Hills Vilas Sdn. Bhd. SRES WEREEFRAETI TR - 100% EEEET
Malaysia 2 shares of MYR1 each In the process of voluntary

liquidation
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(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15

REE AR ER @

it

LA E » Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.
(TAHCRB) MmBARELEN G BHITE
FTEESKARTITTHELR - URIE 8
BN ERe EERRERFLERKR
REBHRNRERE  WERERSBAK
RSN

MM ESTE - ZMER=—T——F=A=A
TRHER  AEENSRARRLELE
TRBEEN 4R 1 - AHCRBE £ RItA B FEE 812
Fr o #EEAHCRBIWEE - £/ & %& T M
HIERT - BERREHEEREIAERT
R0 R RAHCRBA B #sE 2 th il
ERBE—FENRFRELEDEEME MR
B2 Al BEEEE -

EEeRALBENRNETHASELE

15 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)
Note: Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd. (“AHCRB”) allotted various classes of

preference shares of Malaysian Ringgit 1 each to members of the golf
and recreational club in exchange for their paid-in membership fees
deposits in prior years. These shareholders had the same voting rights as
the existing ordinary shareholders and were entitled to use the facilities
within the golf and recreational club.

Following the completion of the disposal of the properties on 2 March
2011 as set out in note 5, the Group’s golf and recreational club
operation ceased thereafter. Subsequently, AHCRB started the process
of voluntary liquidation. In the event of liquidation of AHCRB's assets,
the preference shareholders shall be repaid in proportion to the amounts
subscribed and paid-up to AHCRB by the respective shareholders by
way of capital before any other surplus is distributed in accordance with
certain order or priority and subject to certain conditions.

The Directors consider that the dilution effect of the share issued on the

AHCRBFTE G EZMEEERN EW RERX Group’s interest in AHCRB is not material.

16 Amounts Due to Subsidiaries

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

16 FE{TMIE A BFIE
ZEBEERE LGS WHILEMBNREE
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17 BWERF ~ ST RFEAR 17 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments

i 3L VNG
The Group The Company

LR TR Accounts receivable 34,501 46,862 34,296 46,862
B REERAEE Less: Allowance for bad and
(KT3E17(0)) doubtful debts

(note 17(b) (577) - (577) -

33,924 46,862 33,719 46,862

HESSEREN Deposits and prepayments 6,223 9,170 6,162 7,735

40,147 56,032 39,881 54,597

(a) BRERZDAT (@) Ageing analysis

REEBEBRGEER @ BFEEEWER The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net of allowance
T oEFakENFANEWREZ(E for bad and doubtful debts) which was included in accounts
kR REBRYES ) R DT T - receivable, deposits and prepayments as of the balance sheet

date is as follows:

r5HE N
The Group The Company

RiELHA Current 32,247 44,272 32,042 44,272
w DA E A Less than 1 month past due 953 1,366 953 1,366
HHI 2 3E A 1 to 3 months past due 665 666 665 666
BEAE A3 E A More than 3 months but less
BLR12(8 A than 12 months past due 57 557 57 557
BHAERE 1218 A More than 12 months past due 2 1 2 1
[my kiR Amounts past due 1,677 2,590 1,677 2,590
33,924 46,862 33,719 46,862
RE—BESABRIE  EXER Debts are generally due on the 1st day of each month and
H—MA10RE14K - mEIS T 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or else interest will be
B o AEBEEBREMAFBIIHRN charged. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
BIEE27(a) © in note 27(a).
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17 FEWERF ~ ST RFEN K@) 17 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

(b)

Prepayments (continued)

FEUS BRFURE (b) Impairment of accounts receivable
REENRIERSTEEBESWOT - The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful

debts during the year is as follows:

AEERAAT
The Group and the Company

#2011/2010F4 818 At 1 April 2011/2010 = —

EERREEE Impairment losses recognised 577 —
M3A31H At 31 March 577 -
RZZE——F=ZA=+—H A£EH At 31 March 2012, the Group’s and the Company’s accounts
K7 )Y FE U BR SR AR B 4 M 1) 4 receivable of $577,000 (2011: Nil) and $577,000 (2011: Nil)
AREMERRD R A577,000T( == respectively were individually determined to be impaired.
——4F : ) K%577,0000( 2 E —— Consequently, specific allowance for bad and doubtful debts
FE) Bt SHERORER of $577,000 (2011: Nil) and $577,000 (2011: Nil) respectively
HEEH# D B /577,000 (ZF—— were recognised.

F ) R577,000C(ZF——F -
') -
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17 FEWBRF » ST RFENF @) 17 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

() REBENEYERR (c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
AR s BB AR B R E R FEUER The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither
REBREE AT ¢ individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:

ES ] EIN
The Group The Company

KA@EISORBRE  Neither past due nor impaired 32,247 44,272 32,042 44,272
WELMEAR Less than 1 month past due 953 1,366 953 1,366
BE 2 3(E A 1 to 3 months past due 665 666 665 666
HEAEA3ME A More than 3 months but less
BAR1218 A than 12 months past due 57 557 57 557
wERER A 1218 A More than 12 months past due 2 1 2 1
1,677 2,590 1,677 2,590
33,924 46,862 33,719 46,862
AR EOR B IR E B U R T8 Rl Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
HR B REHNERERES - wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.
B RS ERENERRRAER Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
HREEHR R EFERN—FEL number of independent customers that have a good track
BF - BERERR  RIBAELR record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
AR EEERUBMEANE  MBEH believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
ERIEAR AR 2E8URE - FTAEE of these balances as there has not been a significant change
FULEHERMEER - in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18 BIKFRITER
RZZ——FR=-FT——F=A=+—H"
IRITIFEARE AR - UER—RIETIRTT
#IRITE R (2BMFE23) -

18 Pledged Bank Deposits
At 31 March 2012 and 2011, bank deposits were pledged to a

designated bank to secure the bank loan (see note 23).

19 BEeRBEEEEY 19 Cash and Cash Equivalents
REME FiNYNC|
The Group The Company

2012 2012

T Frx

$°000 $°000
RITTHATER Deposits with banks 80,110 859,694 61,345 839,408
RITEREBES Cash at bank and in hand 34,647 32,330 32,283 27,858
114,757 892,024 93,628 867,266

20 HitERNRKRETER 20 Other Payables and Accruals
EE YN

The Group The Company

ERETROESTEMR  Accruals and retention

N ERREB R monies payable for
redevelopment work 67,015 87,101 67,015 87,101
HihfE N EET B  Other payables and accruals 15,449 58,124 15,352 55,513
82,464 145,225 82,367 142,614

P E A R M B R T B R IER N —F B

5F o within one year.

All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be settled

Annual Report 2011-2012 ﬁﬁb



e i —
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(LL8®%5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21 2WET& 21 Deposits Received
EREBENRANTNE WET&TEHR—F All of the Group’s and the Company’s deposits received are
NS WD B A 843,138,000 (=& expected to be settled within one year except for $43,138,000 (2011:
——4F : 124,397,000t ) F143,138,000 7T $124,397,000) and $43,138,000 (2011: $123,233,000) respectively
— T ——14F 1 123,233,0007T) 5T & FE5T which are expected to be settled after more than one year.

R—EFRBNBIRIN

22 REARREEEHE 22 Provision for Long Service Payments

AEERAQT]

The Group and

the Company

ST

$’000

R201144 818 At 1 April 2011 1,370

REFEET IR Provision made for the year 231

72012438318 At 31 March 2012 1,601
RIEFA(REGED)  NEBBKL T Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
AFHA FE TRIBAERE  EEEER to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
TNEER %M - ENESBEIRARET circumstances to employees who have completed at least five
SENHE MIREFE - RERANEBEEKR years of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent
SEINEAEBERAHINSETE - 15 on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
B8 B TERR T EEE AR TS ERN by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
BEIX o attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
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(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 IRITEF — BEF
R-ZT——F=f=+—8  RTEZNE
REATATE -

Bank Loan — Secured

At 31 March 2012, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

FEBERAEQT
The Group and the Company

1FR Within 1 year - 200,000
e Aftor 1 yearbut within 2years 200000 200,000
2F1Z{E5F A After 2 years but within 5 years = 800,000
200,000 1,000,000
200,000 1,200,000

R-ZBEXRETA-+TH > AAFE—R
88775 3 — 17 & ££1,200,000,000 7T #) &l
B o ZRTMERAN—HBERF
Y —_E—=—F=A=+—HK
{8 /& 10,016,000,000 7T ( = F — — 4F
9,845,000,0007T) W& TEEEEN ZE —
B AR R Y EEMEHEERANS
TEEMNE ZHWLMEFIEREM -
NZE—ZF=FA=+—H KEEZR
77 & 3 5200,000,000 7T ( =& — —4F
1,200,000,0007T) ° 1 BV & HARR B 1%
EREZMF - WAFEE TIEMG -

+

AARRRITREAERBITEARANET
FAEERBRILTEMMNZER T ER
R WRKREARE —ENRTENRF ° A
NAERZER - AIEBRBMNAREER
ERBNEERE - ARAETHERESE

anp
[Ny

B

BFARBEURH N_T——FR-_T——F
ZA=+—8  ARANTEE REAERER
EERBNEE -

On 20 October 2006, the Company entered into a facility agreement
with a bank for banking facilities of up to $1,200,000,000. The
banking facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a first
fixed legal charge over certain fixed assets referred to in note 14(a)
with carrying value of $10,016,000,000 as at 31 March 2012 (2011:
$9,845,000,000) and a first floating charge over certain assets placed
on or used in the redevelopment. At 31 March 2012, the outstanding
bank loan was $200,000,000 (2011: $1,200,000,000). The facilities
have, subject to certain conditions, been extended for two additional

years.

The Company’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet ratios and maintenance of capital at certain required levels. If
the Company were to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Company regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. As at 31 March 2012 and 2011,
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been

breached.
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24 FEHEHAIE 24 Obligations Under Finance Leases
R-ZZ——F=A=+—"H XEBEARQ At 31 March 2012, the Group and the Company had obligations
AR ELE H ERIERERIMT ¢ under finance leases repayable as follows:

AEBRADH
The Group and the Company
2012 2011
REESE REESE REHE RIEHE
NRERE AREEE  PENEC NN/ ECFE

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
T T T T
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
1R Within 1 year 41 41 41 41
1B E2F A After 1 year but within 2 years 41 41 41 41
2F 1B ESFN After 2 years but within 5 years 38 38 79 79
79 79 120 120
120 120 161 161

B BBFIESZH Less: Total future interest expenses

1BE - _
FAEAIENIEE  Present value of lease obligations 120 161
25 FENBUTHE 25 Government Lease Premiums Payable

AEERAAT
The Group and the Company

JFE T (B Government lease premiums payable 2,240 2,284
W BIERNEMEMREESER  Less: Amount due within 1 year included
#91F RFET R IR in other payables and accruals (47) (44)
2,193 2,240
FES T B R BB IR A (B8 8458 LA B E & Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a
FZEE(=ZE——F : 5[E)EtHE - fixed rate of 5% (2011: 5%) per annum on the outstanding balance.

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &
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26 EXRK#HE 26 Capital and Reserves
(a) REZARITDHIEE (@) Movements in components of equity
REEGRE w8 T EAKE 5 HEf The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
THEERAEHROE R - JEHREE each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out
BEEER - ARaRFIEFRE in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of
& 51| 2 4B AK B 5 B S B 5B 41| 40 the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
N between the beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
VNN The Company

R Efhf#fk R A

Share Revaluation Retained

capital reserve earnings
T T T
$000 $'000 $000

R2010F4818 Balance at 1 April 2010

e 360,000 1,761,266 6,536,045 8,657,311
REFRM K Profit for the year and
SEUWA LS total comprehensive income - — 1,225,889 1,225,889

M2011E3831H Balance at 31 March 2011
%2011§4R1H and 1 April 2011

O3 360,000 1,761,266 7,761,934 9,883,200
KEZ R K Profit for the year and

AT ONE total comprehensive income - - 416,777 46,777
BR E—BHEE  Dividends approved in respect

HERAE of the previous financial year - - (162,000) (162,000)
BREGBEE Dividends declared in respect of

BIRFRE the current financial year - - (100,800) (100,800)

20124638318 Balance at 31 March 2012
Fe3=3 360,000 1,761,266 7,915,911 10,037,177
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(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26 EXRKFHE @
(b) MR

s ——

26 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(b)

Share capital

2012
T
$°000
ERE Authorised:
400,000,000 @I FMMEETIL 400,000,000 ordinary shares of $1 each 400,000 400,000
ERITRAR Issued and fully paid:
360,000,000 @M FMEETL 360,000,000 ordinary shares of $1 each 360,000 360,000

BRI A A A R E IR
RE - XAERRBAAR LERKE
—BRBNE—F - HRAR AR
BE AR BRISZARFELS -

(c) fABRMEMARZ
B A R A A 4 B R 0
MEBHERBREMNEE B -
RBECERAERES o MENE
BEEBNER  EARENEGERS
FHEGEHEARBDET - LhE
RS «

AEBEERIIVERFE - LR
()8 F R E R SME & I TS R
FELEHER ZE S BRMERE -

BEARREREE-—RNBARETET
BERIEER T EERBRMEAEE
1 5 BT /B8 7 BN AT 20 I B 0% 35 0
HOBREE -

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIBEEIEAR A &

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank

equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

The revaluation reserve represents hotel properties revaluation
surpluses and other properties revaluation surplus recognised
in prior years. The hotel has been redeveloped into iISQUARE.
Upon the retirement or disposal of the properties, any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to

retained earnings. The reserve is non-distributable.

The exchange reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign operations in note 1(q).

The capital reserve represents the net increase in the Group’s
share of the undistributable reserve in a subsidiary pursuant
to the issuance of various classes of preference shares by a

subsidiary to preference shareholders.
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26 EXRKfFEE@

(d)

Atk

R-ZE——F=ZA=+—H ' RE
EB(ARHEN)BETBIER T EH
A 5K T2 R HE a8 AR R B 7 16 4
%8/51,753,808,0007C (=& ——4F :
1,762,895,0007T) - EEGRNEER
BEREEHEEZED RARHAREER
0.5570( = ——% : §%0.457T) -
4 #£198,000,000 L (=ZF ——&F -
162,000,0007T ) (M 5E12) © & Lk
BREEBBREEHNAERAER

i o
BREE

AEBEEREANTRANRREAR
SEEKCENEE N RS LA
Y MET E SR Rk P AR TR RO IR 7% (B
BARAGERABGREN T
HEERERRRERE®R I REAM
MERIA LT RA R o

AEBTHRTMEBEERER
BREAEUERMEBKFEEFR
BRI R ERE - BB EE AR
HHRAEBMREDRS T - WEAE
KEGREEMARERNERE - #HE
TR CFRZT——F=A=+—
HIEFE  NREBEMZERBERT

IR B E BRI B S B AR M
& BREHNERNEBBLERRER
EFROREREEARLERE - gtitm
= AEEARATERAGBLERR
TEFRBRERUGEEEREBRAA
RSB E NZT—ZF=A
=t—B KXAEENEREGELE
B2.0%(ZF——4F 1 121%) -
MRTHER LB 2BBRITERE
EEiE 191,109,000 0 (=& — — & ¢
194,792,0007T) °

| ]]H‘

R
g

26 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(d)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated under the provisions of section 79B of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, was $1,753,808,000 (2011:
$1,762,895,000). After the balance sheet date the Directors
proposed a final dividend of $0.55 per share (2011: $0.45 per
share), amounting to $198,000,000 (2011: $162,000,000)
(note 12). This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at

the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefit for other stakeholders, by leasing properties and
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2012
and 2011.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. As at 31 March
2012, the Group’s gearing ratio was 2.0% (2011: 12.1%)
with bank deposits and cash exceeding total bank loan of
$191,109,000 (2011: $194,792,000).
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27 HBEREERAAEE
AREEEER RGBT AL R
Ad  FIERERER -

BRAREETAERNRRE - UARAEEABN
EIEZ SRR NS RR B RIS E M
VEEIAT o

(@ EERMR
AEENEERREZEREEKE
Ko EBBECEREEREK  LAT
ETEERFTEASHEERRE -

REWESMS - HURBEZE KR
BA-TeBEENEF  A5KEE
ELERIE BT o BINGEFRFTH
BRRTEEIHRENTSREA
MERRES  TEEREFPHTER
NEEPEEFTEREEIRE IR
—RESAEARNE  EXER—
MRI0ORE14KR - BEAGEURE ©
AEESEEENBER THEBARK
EBARIUEETE - REERRE
Fil4 (2K 21 ) 1EBRUKEERM
RS o

AEBETESEREEARETNE
Mo NEFEPTFRHEM G - REB A
XHEERRLERABERBERTE
BeREEMETE(SHRREE
) o AEBEYEREHAIBAKER
ARRAEEERBEEFER o

FRASERERERMELEES
RBAENOEMECKE - SR
MHEE17 ©

27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@ Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due on the 1st day of
each month and 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or
else interest will be charged. Legal action will be taken against
past due debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The
Group obtains deposits from customers (see note 21) as

collateral over accounts receivable.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting
any impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to

credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

outin note 17.

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIBEEIEAR A &
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BHEREER D AEE®

(b)

REBVE S ERE

REBEMBRETEHERERNEST
MREBESFNR  UNBETRETER

Hin o MRGERTERNREHE - F
FRERTTARIRHE R AMEER - U
mRESNRERNRBESTK

TERFAVREERANRBZIFTES
MEEREERBREEANHRE
HRBNHFRIR - ZFRERAOARITR
BREAABANEIIZNE

RanE(

ERBEXREEANERNX(IET

27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest

payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,

BISEWNR BT RAEFRMAD based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
RIARE X BBmAIR earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to
pay:
REE The Group
2012
EEAER  RNAFR 15 fbchkd ik opid
REE REREAE BEEAR  BORE  BORSE HB5E
Balance Total More than More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carrying  undiscounted 1 yearor less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
r r r r r r
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HipERFTK Other payables and accruals
EHER 82,464 82576 82576 - - -
RE Ik Deposits received 136,538 136,538 93,400 20,038 21,181 1,019
HAREHE Obligations under finance leases 120 120 4 | 38 =
FITER — BHEA Bankloan — secured 200,000 203,031 1,951 201,080 - -
FENFTHE Government lease premiums
payable 2,193 3,813 - 159 a1 3177
421,315 426,078 177,968 221,318 21,696 5,096
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27 BIREREERAABE® 27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)
(b) ARBEERE @ (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
REE(E) The Group (Continued)

BERER
E

Balance More than

sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but

carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
T T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

HiEARR Other payables and accruals

BT ER 145,225 145,205 145,225 - - -
BlETS Depostts received 129,899 129,899 5,502 92,556 29,922 1919
REMEAE Obligations under finance leases 161 161 4 H 79 -
$RTER —FEA Bankloan — secured 1,200,000 1,216,278 207,470 206,045 802,758 -
ERBHE Government lease premiums

payable 2,240 4,131 159 159 477 3,336
1477525 1,495,689 358,397 298,801 833,236 5,255

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &
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27 BIREBEERAAEE @ 27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)
(b) ARBEERE @ (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Vi N/NET! The Company

2012
BEAfR  ANARR 15/ BB1F fikihecs
BAE RERBEE REBNR  EORF  EORSE el

Balance Total More than More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carrying  undiscounted 1 yearor less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
o e i i e T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HipERTRK Other payables and accruals
[t ER 82,367 82,479 82,479 = = =
BliTe Deposits recelved 135,366 135,366 92,228 20,038 21,181 1,019
JERWIBARZE  Amounts due to subsidiaries 15,484 15,484 15,484 - - -
BEHERE Obligations under finance leases 120 120 4 4 38 -
RITER —HEE Bankloan — secured 200,000 203,031 1,951 201,080 - =
FENFTE Government lease premiums
payable 2,193 3,813 - 159 471 3177
435,530 440,293 192,183 221,318 21,696 5,096

Balance More than More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but

camying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than

amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
i i i i T i
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

HiERTR Other payables and accruals

E:ER 142,614 142,614 142,614 - - -
BlETS Deposits received 127,027 127,027 3,794 91,392 29,922 1919
FERTHBARZIE  Amounts due to subsidiaries 13,003 13,003 13,003 - - -
REMEAE Obligations under finance leases 161 161 4 4 79 -
SRITER —FEA Bankloan — secured 1,200,000 1,216,278 207,470 206,045 802,758 -
FERTE Government lease premiums

payable 2,040 4,131 159 159 417 3,336
1,485,045 1,503,209 367,081 297,637 833,236 5,255
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27 BIREREERAABE® 27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)
() FZEEpkz (c) Interest rate risk
AEENMEREBREZREBETE The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loan.
e EBHRITERFEAEBAAT The bank loan borrowed at variable rates expose the Group to
RenEf Xk AEEERERS cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as
A F RS0 T ()Pt monitored by management is set out in (i) below.
()  FI=HR () Interest rate profile
TEREFVINEEBERGEEH The following table details the interest rate profile of the
REB AN BREEF R Group’s and the Company’s borrowings at the balance
A sheet date:

AEERADA
The Group and the Company

2012 2011

BRI B F| =

Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate
% %

EEMEE Fixed rate borrowings:

BEFIEAIE  Obligations under

finance leases - 120 — 161
FERTECATHIE  Government lease
premiums payable 5.00 2,193 5.00 2,240
2,313 2,401
FEEE: Variable rate
borrowings:
RITER Bank loan — secured
— FiH 0.98 200,000 0.70 1,200,000
BE®E Total borrowings 202,313 1,202,401

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &
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BHEREER D AEE®

(c)

) 22 [ B ()

(i) BUREDH
W-T——#=A=+—-8"
st FI% %R £ T R25
—T——F:25)RE% Mt
FrAE A S E R T
AR BB B 18 i Y B AR BB ik R
FE LR A, 1 h1#418,0007T
(ZZ——4F : 2,505,0007T) °

SRR E D AT B R R R
(BREREEBBREZERE

) AR S BRR R AR B (FIR
B ) BN L o AR E
FEAEREEBEREERR
EFEHETETAMEANR
enEMNERRME @ AEHE
BB R (FREER) B
BERZMNEEBEF S
WFE R EIEL S - 518
PMREZTE——FHERNE
HEHELT o

& [ By
MRAEEBASDH RSB
& E T EEREEROINERR -

PRE
AEENMAESM T ALY UEER
R CFM-E——F=ZA=+—H
HARBETEEEAEZENEET
/BEO

27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

(©

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 25 (2011: 25) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately $418,000 (2011:
$2,505,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact
on the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2011.

Currency risk
The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as
substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars.

Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 March 2012 and 2011.
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28

EERKER
REBIEBEBCGRBIMEATES S EMRGIDE
RE - RRBES(ERGIDERNESR
SERBIMEAE R EI([RERETE]) - %54
BT EIR B A BN AT HR
RIRETE - RIBERESHE  EXFEE
HBEIZIRIE BB A B B5% AT S5 H 4
;o BEEAMMEBAE LR A20,0007T ©
Bros Mt FRoN - AEEWIRR BT E S8
A E.20,0007T FI5% 1EH B FEIE L3 18
&= %S A AES0,000 AR © MarEl
TEH B S HFR AR B E B A - M
FHEIEL B BRI MR - BIERE S TR
WEAT NMEEFRERNFREERTS
BREER - SEZITHERESHIEFTR
MEEEMEREEME INAEERER
BBz R R o

TELAEFE - ANEE B 55 2R P d R st ff
BARRIES - BI2M5H 5B EHBATATR
WEB AT RFRABETE(RES
TEl]) - EEMBARGTEREEF &M
7.5% ZE14.5% T F 0 b =B LR o Bt
FON  AEEVEFBABSEINEME
e

RAFEER - HOLUAI A ERE A &
B fE R 5K A 55,000t (ZF — —4F -
)  RZE——F=A=+—H A&£EH
AHEANESKRHERASTT(ZE——
4 £ 9,0007T) °

28 Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$20,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income in excess of $20,000, subject to a maximum monthly income
of $30,000. Mandatory contributions to the plan vest immediately
while voluntary contributions to the plan vest at the time the
employees reach the retirement range, subject to certain conditions.
The staff costs in respect of staff employed by DTZ for building and
property management of iISQUARE are reflected in the Group’s

income statement.

In prior years, the employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Malaysia
and Singapore were members of the Employee Provident Fund and
the Central Provident Fund (the “funds”) operated by the respective
local government. The relevant subsidiaries were required to
contribute to the funds at rates ranging from 7.5% to 14.5% based on
the salaries of the employees. The only obligation of the Group to the

above funds was the required contributions at the applicable rate.

During the year, forfeited contributions of $55,000 (2011: Nil) was
utilised to reduce the contributions payable for the year. Unutilised
forfeited contributions of Nil (2011: $9,000) had yet to be applied by
the Group at 31 March 2012.

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIBEEIEAR A &
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29 i
R-T—— = B =+— B RERTIXRE
BRI E A RGBT

29

Commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2012 not provided for

in the financial statements were as follows:

FEBERAEQT
The Group and the Company

SEIED)

Contracted for

1,998

30 HESARNERAREER

EZgRA AEER-_T——-F=A
=t HNEERSRRR&RIERTORR
RIBWERRATMABERAR - MRA
AERBEMMKIL - BB AR SRR
HORMMBE®RE - REREET ARG RE
AHAFRI R o

30

Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling
Party

At 31 March 2012, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Land Limited
and Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited respectively, both
of which are incorporated in Hong Kong. The immediate parent
produces financial statements available for public use and the ultimate
controlling party does not produce financial statements available for

public use.
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31 EEMEEBE-_ZT—Z-F 31
ZA=t—-HLEEEMXE
MHEET ~ FERIMNZREN
E3-Z
HEAPBHREZFLHBEH  FEFHIQ
SOEMEZENAEBE_S——_F=A
=+—HIEFEER  INEBERMEIRE
FRRMEETFIRNER] o BLERIB L BIET
SR gL B AL E A RARIER -

(BEGHEANDENRNERMERRNES — Htb2EBABEENZS]

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements

— Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

(BB BREERDE 109 476 M HRE ]
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

(EARPBREEIDF125R N E B R R |

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

(EARPBREENDFE3R A BERE]

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

(CEAGTEANE195 (20114 [ B1EF) ]
HKAS 19 (2011), Employee benefits

(BAGERDE275% (20114 ) [ BB 5K |
HKAS 27 (2011), Separate financial statements

(CERMBRELR])DER SR TA ]
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

Possible Impact of Amendments,

New Standards and Interpretations Issued
But Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended
31 March 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and new standards which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2012 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the

following which may be relevant to the Group.

EUT BHS 2%
BAsR VS R HIAEX

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on or after

20127 A1H
1 July 2012

2013F1H18

1 January 2013

2013F1A1H
1 January 2013

2013F1A1H
1 January 2013

2013F1A1H
1 January 2013

20131 A1H
1 January 2013

20151 A1H
1 January 2015

AR IEERHIE LS FTIRA 006 e R H)
BFTELHFE - 2B A AR AERE © 5K
NE L ERTH AR B K2 ZE MM R
BREAFZEOAREETK

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of

operations and financial position.
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EFEHBHE
Five Year Financial Summary
(LA7B8 ¥ %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E Results
2009 2010 2012
T T TT Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000
B Turnover
— BEKE — Continuing operation 295 311 119,956 376,374 455,269
— AR A — Discontinued operation 17,497 16,525 17,246 17,010 -

17,792 16,836 137,202 393,384 455,269

REVEMLELE%Z Profit/(loss) from operations
MR R (8518) after valuation changes

in investment properties 449,999 (208,259) 2,776,964 1,036,679 533,468
RhE AR Finance costs (121) (119) (4,325) (9,175) (2,464)
BB ATEF,(BE) Profit/(loss) before taxation 449,878  (208,378) 2,772,639 1,027,504 531,004
FrSfi(GE) Income tax (Note) (48,712) 5,431 (7,904) (7,555)  (101,264)

REFESEZREE Profit/(loss) for the year from

=R (ER) continuing operation 401,166 (202,947) 2,764,735 1,019,049 429,740
RERIEREZREE Profit/(loss) for the year from

wRL(FR) discontinued operation (1,730) (1,788) 5366 202,494 -
A EIER IR RENG Profit/(loss) for the year

AEERRN(BR) attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 399,436 (204,735) 2,770,101 1,222,443 429,740

Annual Report 2011-2012 ﬁﬁb
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EFEFHEHE Five Year Financial Summary
(LL8®%5)R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEEREGE Assets and Liabilities

2012
Fr
$°000
FEE Fixed assets 5,831,769 6,182,474 9,173,836 9,961,016 10,156,732
RIERIBE E (7E) Deferred tax assets (Note) 97 14,984 7,284 — =
mENEEFE Net current assets 404,713 243,627 597,378 974,498 170,626
6,236,579 6,441,085 9,778,498 10,935514 10,327,358
RITER — BiKE Bank loan — secured (130,000) (568,000) (1,105,000) (1,000,000)  (200,000)

FENBUTHE Government lease premiums
payable (2,367) (2,327) (2,284) (2,240) (2,193)
BEMEERIE Obligations under finance leases (70) — (114) (120) (79)
EIEFREE & () Deferred tax liabilities (Note) (730,655) — — 271) (25,278)
Hipr g aE Other financial liabilities © @ - - -
EEFE NET ASSETS 5,373,485 5,870,756 8,671,100 9,932,883 10,099,808
N Share capital 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000
s Reserves 5,013,485 5,510,756 8,311,100 9,572,883 9,739,808
R TOTAL EQUITY 5,373,485 5,870,756 8,671,100 9,932,883 10,099,808

F REEST-—F-A=1T-HLFE AEEHE
FERAT(EAGTREBDE12R ST ST -
WRERRRIABEARNREYE MRS [AR
SHPFTEMEENRLEHE - A&EREPRAR
(CEBE R E 1258 RO FT i 22 A B BUR &
ERRN_ZFENFR T -ZFNA AT
EMYEE—T-TF A=+ HILFENEFHE
HAE - R BR-_TTN\FUA—RAZAHRFE
BEFI AT BRI T ARER

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group early adopted the
amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes, in respect of the recognition of
deferred tax on investment properties carried at fair value and non-depreciable
assets measured using the revaluation model. The change in policy arising from
the amendments to HKAS 12 has been applied retrospectively by restating the
opening balances at 1 April 2009 and 2010, with consequential adjustments to
the figures for the year ended 31 March 2010. Figures in financial years before
1 April 2008 have not been restated as it is not practicable to do so.

4 Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEIREEIEAR A &
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